Transporta un sakaru institūts Transport and Telecommunication Institute

# RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE

Volume 19. No. 2 - 2024

*ISSN 1691-2853 ISSN 1691-2861* (Online: www.tsi.lv)

> Riga 2024

#### **EDITORIAL BOARD:**

Prof. Igor Kabashkin (Editor-in-Chief), Transport & Telecommunication Institute, Latvia
Prof. Irina Yatskiv (Issue Editor), Transport & Telecommunication Institute, Latvia
Prof. Darius Bazaras, Vilnius Gediminas Technical University, Lithuania
Dr. Enno Lend, College of Engineering, Estonia
Prof. Andrzej Niewczas, Lublin University of Technology, Poland
Prof. Lauri Ojala, Turku School of Economics, Finland
Prof. Eftihia Nathanail, University of Thessaly, Greece
Prof. Irina Kuzmina-Merlino, Transport & Telecommunication Institute, Latvia
Prof. Alexander Grakovski, Transport & Telecommunication Institute, Latvia
Prof. Mihails Savrasovs, Transport & Telecommunication Institute, Latvia

#### **Editor:**

Irina Alekseeva, Transport & Telecommunication Institute

#### **Supporting Organization:**

Latvian Transport Development and Education Association Latvian Operations Research Society

#### THE JOURNAL IS DESIGNED FOR PUBLISHING PAPERS CONCERNING THE FOLLOWING FIELDS OF RESEARCH:

- mathematical and computer modelling
- mathematical methods in natural and engineering sciences
- computer sciences
- aviation and aerospace technologies
- electronics and telecommunication
- telematics and information technologies
- transport and logistics
- economics and management
- social sciences

Articles and review are presented in the journal in English and Latvian (at the option of authors). This volume is published without publisher editing.

#### EDITORIAL CORRESPONDENCE

Transporta un sakaru institūts (Transport and Telecommunication Institute) Lauvas 2, LV-1019, Riga, Latvia. Phone: (+371)67100586 E-mail: rutkovska.j@tsi.lv, http:// www.tsi.lv

#### RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No 2

ISSN 1691-2853, ISSN 1691-2861 (online: www.tsi.lv)

The journal of Transport and Telecommunication Institute (Riga, Latvia) The journal is being published since 2006

Copyright © Transport and Telecommunication Institute, 2024

#### **PROGRAMMING COMMITTEE**

- Igor Kabashkin, Professor, Chairman, Director of Programme, TSI
- Irina Yatskiv, Professor, Chairwoman of the Board, TSI
- Boriss Misnevs, Professor, Engineering Faculty, TSI
- Irina Kuzmina-Merlino, Professor, Director of Programme, Transport and Management Faculty, TSI
- Dmitry Pavlyuk, Professor, Director of Programme, Engineering Faculty, TSI
- Mihails Savrasovs, Professor, Vice-Rector for Academic & Research, TSI
- Yulia Stukalina, Professor, Vice-Dean of Transport and Management Faculty, TSI
- Emmanuel Merchan, Professor, Dean of the Engineering Faculty TSI
- Alexander Medvedev, Professor, Vice-Dean of the Engineering Faculty, TSI
- Irina Pticina, Professor, Vice-Rector for Student Affairs, TSI

#### **ORGANIZING COMMITTEE**

- Irina Yatskiv, Professor, Chairwoman of the Board, TSI
- Mihails Savrasovs, Professor, Vice-Rector for Academic & Research, TSI
- Irina Pticina, Professor, Vice-Rector for Student Affairs, TSI
- Olga Zervina, Assistant Professor, PhD School Coordinator, TSI
- Oksana Skorobogatova, Master Students Coordinator, TSI
- Jelena Rutkovska, Organizing Manager, TSI

The 46<sup>th</sup> Research and Academic Conference

RESEARCH AND TECHNOLOGY – STEP INTO THE FUTURE

6 December 2024 Riga, Latvia

46. zinātniski praktiskā un mācību metodiskā konference

## ZINĀTNE UN TEHNOLOĢIJA — SOLIS NĀKOTNĒ

2024. gadā 6. decembrī, Rīga

## CONTENTS

## Session 1. Computer Problems of the Information Society and the Modern Electronics

Automation of Infrastructure as Code Management Dmitrijs Šamšins
Low Code/No Code Platform Choosing Methodology for Business Purposes Viktorija Paukova
A Comprehensive Digital Transformation Framework for It Organizations Diana Predoaia
Exploring Model Selection Approaches for Customer Churn Prediction in Web Applications Jelizaveta Proglada
Feautures of Modern Everyday Technologies and Tendencies of Recrutiement Requiremens in It Field <i>Reinis Simanovičs</i>
Session 2. Transport and Logistics
Developing and Testing Strategies to Reduce Inventory in the Finished Goods Warehouse Valdis Gūtmanis
Cilvēkresursu vadība pasažieru pārvadājumos: problēmu analīze un stratēģijas mūsdienu transporta nozares izaicinājumu pārvarēšanai Artūrs Ābols
Mobilitātes punktu pielāgošana lietotāju kultūras un psiholoģiskajām īpatnībām: pieejas lietotāju pieredzes uzlabošanai <i>Elīna Troicka</i>
Implementation of Multimodal Transportation to Increase Sustainability of Local Supply Chains in India Mohammed Ahsan Shareef
Session 3. Market: Research, Projects, Technologies and Problems of the Modern Economy and Business
Digitalization of Integrated Reporting: Software Solutions and Their Impact on Corporate Transparancy and Sustainable Development <i>Ferangiz Abdurakhmonova</i>
Development of Digital Business in European Banks During Crisis Nijat Masmaliyev
Challenges and Opportunities for LLM-Powered Agents in Supply Chain Management Maksim Ilin
Anomaly Detection in Financial Transactions Data Ibrahim Israfilov
Development of Digital Skills for Human Resources in the Banking Sector in Sri Lanka D.H. Nilusha Erangi

Using Data Analytics to Understand and Influence Customer Behavior in Digital Customer Communication <i>Taley Muhammad</i>
Sustainable Goal Management and Enhanced Passenger Engagement in Aviation: Literature Review Christy Oommen Jacob
Analysis of Ground Handling Risks That Impact Airplane Health Management Rustam Togambayev
Structural Reforms and Business Participation in Global Value Chains in Sub-Saharan Africa Etian Boress Kemgou Voptia
Leveraging Blockchain Technology in Sustainable Marketing: A KPI-Driven Approach Chau Long Tran
Connectedness in European Financial Institutions: A Digital Perspective Mehemmed Maharramov
Developing A Corporate-Centric Model for Influencer Marketing: Strategies for Enhancing Brand Image Akarsh Surendran
Managing of Operational Efficiency and Reducing of Aircraft Downtime by Optimization of Aircraft on Ground Processes for Airoperator <i>Diallo Nikita Cheick Abraham</i>
Assessment of Investment Attractiveness of EasyJet Company Waqar Ullah
Safety Management System (SMS) Implementation in Small-Sized Aviation Company Viktorija Fahrutdinova
Integration of Robotic Technologies into Pharmaceutical Services in Latvia: Challenges and Opportunities Based on European Experience <i>Anna Manakova</i>
Adaptive Communication Models - Solutions Framing the Future of Marketing Nikole Hristolubova
Innovation Hubs as Catalysts for Consumer Behavior Transformation: A Marketing Perspective Anandhu Vijayakumar
Session 4. Modern Technologies of Education
Artificial Intelligence and New Thinking Competences for University Students Boriss Misnevs
Successful Positioning of a Driver Education Center: Ways to Create a Competitive Advantage
Marija Leontjeva

# Session 1

**Computer Problems of the Information Society and the Modern Electronics** 

Informācijas sabiedrības datorizācijas problēmas un mūsdienu elektronikas pasaule RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 8 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## AUTOMATION OF INFRASTRUCTURE AS CODE MANAGEMENT

#### Dmitrijs Šamšins

Transport and Telecommunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia st85944@students.tsi.lv

Keywords: Chef, configuration management, SME, automation, IaC, terraform

Automation in cloud infrastructure management is crucial for ensuring that modern organizations can efficiently and effectively manage their IT resources. Automation has many different definitions, and it is because of the complex phase of automation systems historical implementation process. The evolution of the IT-automation-systems comes at the high peak of new generation wireless Internet speed, big-data throughput, big costs, and analytical DevOps automated infrastructure as code monitoring system implementations. As expected, the latest trends and relevance of problems related to optimization and automation are only increasing due to the obsolescence of old methods of automating cloud infrastructure, and the growth of new ones. Gartner's analytical report (Gartner, 2024) states a rapidly evolving landscape of cloud computing requires solutions for provisioning, configuration, deployment, issue debugging mechanisms, and scaling of infrastructure with minimal manual intervention, in automated manner. This report also mentions that there is a growing number of commercial business organizations that are focused on or already using automation and AI implementations to optimize online operations. Thus, more than 30% of enterprises already want to automate half of all online interactions and move infrastructure in cloud. It indicates that automation will take a first place in next few years, and all business organizations might be ready for migrating infrastructure to new cloud services management technology stacks, such as Chef, Ansible, Salt, Terraform, and CI/CD pipelines.

This research's aim was to propose an approach for automating deployment of infrastructure resource provisioning in cloud infrastructure, including scaling, networking, monitoring, and configuration management. The primary research hypothesis is that the proposed automated approach is beneficial for organizations in several aspects: time to provision an infrastructure, level of standardization, unified processes, cost of deployment, and operational costs.

The result of this work - the developed standardized approach for deploying cloud automation using Infrastructure as Code (IaC) tools, coupled with a metric-driven formula for assessing the cloud infrastructure's integrity and effectiveness in relation to deployment performance. The proposed solution integrated Chef into a cohesive framework for managing cloud infrastructure, thereby enhancing scalability, reducing costs, and improving organizational efficiency. Moreover, critical bugs within Chef were resolved through the development of predictive troubleshooting functions, thus contributing to a more reliable automated infrastructure.

The provided Terraform module introduces innovative solutions, including a script to overcome AWS user data length restrictions, an automated chef-client onboarding module, and a Chef Automate configuration settings module. These modules address gaps following the end-of-life of AWS Chef OpsWorks, where no updated instructions or guides from Chef currently exist for cloud onboarding. This standardized IaC Terraform module offers a reusable, automated chef-onboarding stack, streamlining deployment and ensuring consistent configuration across cloud environments.

The research is supervised by Dr.sc.ing., Professor Dmitry Pavlyuk.

#### References

1. Gartner. (2024) *Gartner Says 30% of Enterprises Will Automate More Than Half of Their Network Activities by 2026*. STAMFORD, Conn. Available at: https://www.gartner.com/en/newsroom/press-releases/2024-09-18-gartner-says-30percent-of-enterprises-will-automate-more-than-half-of-their-network-activities-by-2026, las accessed 11.14.24. RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 10-11 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## LOW CODE/NO CODE PLATFORM CHOOSING METHODOLOGY FOR BUSINESS PURPOSES

Viktorija Paukova

Transport and Telecommunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia st80549@students.tsi.lv

Keywords: Low code/No code platform, low code methodology, low code platform choice, LCP

The increasing demand for the integration of complex processes within enterprises, coupled with the substantial volume of data collected for organizational planning and achievement of business objectives, has created a challenge for the rapid development of applications and establishment of IT systems that facilitate automation of business processes. The answer to this challenge was the rapid popularization of Low code and Low code platforms (Elshal et al., 2023). The LCP industry continued to experience fast growth and innovation, driven by several key trends and developments such as increased demand for rapid development, empowerment of citizen developers, integration with emerging technologies, market expansion and investment, enterprise adoption (Bock & Ulrich, 2021). Current research indicates that there are over 200 Low-Code/No-Code Platforms (LCPs) offering solutions to businesses, leading to a transformation in the participants involved in the development of enterprise systems and websites. This shift has given rise to the phenomenon of citizen developers and increased engagement of end-users in the development process (Radixweb, n.d.). Consequently, selecting a low-code platform that aligns with the specific needs of an enterprise has become a critical consideration for businesses aiming to gain a competitive advantage through the adoption of technological solutions.

The selection of a Low-Code Platform presents unique challenges that stem from the need to carefully balance ease of use and speed of development and adoption with customization, integration, scalability, and security. These factors require careful consideration to ensure that the chosen platform aligns with both current and future business needs.

In examining the criteria for selecting the appropriate low-code platform, including the specific steps and factors that organizations should take into account, the author identified a notable gap in comprehensive research on this subject among scholars.

The primary objectives of this research are as follows:

- To analyze the evolution and current landscape of low-code/no-code platforms by identifying existing solutions and research gaps regarding the methodologies for selecting LCPs to meet business needs.
- To identify the specific roles for which LCPs are best suited and to ascertain customer expectations for these platforms.
- To establish criteria and guidelines that businesses should consider when selecting an LCP.
- To validate the findings and methodologies developed during the study through empirical testing.

Drawing on the literature review and analysis of existing criteria and methodological gaps, a comprehensive evaluation framework has been developed to establish a robust and structured assessment system. This framework takes into account essential criteria, including functionality, scalability, integration capabilities, user experience, security, and cost, along with specific steps that management should consider when selecting a low-code platform (LCP) for their

organization. It comprises a detailed list of criteria for identifying the most suitable LCP for a particular enterprise. A rubric-based assessment approach has been employed to define criteria for evaluating specific features or performance metrics, thereby ensuring consistency in evaluations. Each criterion is assigned a weight reflecting its importance, with points allocated for various performance levels, facilitating a quantitative assessment.

Expert interview will be used to gather input from industry experts on LCPs selection methodology, as an effective way to bridge the gap between theory and practice, in order to conduct approbation of the suggested methodology and evaluate its suitability for the declared goal.

This framework can be tailored to the organization's specific requirements and used to objectively assess and compare different platform options.

The research is supervised by Dr.sc.ing., Professor Irina Pticina.

- 1. Bock, A. C. & Frank, U. (2021) Low-Code Platform. Business & Information Systems Engineering, 63(6), 733-740. doi: 10.1007/s12599-021-00726-8.
- 2. Elshal, E., Dickhaut, E., & Ebbel, P. (2023) An investigation of why low- code platforms provide answers and new challenges. In: *Proceedings of Hawaii International Conference on System Sciences (HICSS)*, Maui, Hawaii. DOI:10.24251/HICSS.2023.746.
- 3. Radix. (2024) How Can You Harness the Power of Citizen Developers with Low Code Platforms? Available at: https://radixweb.com/blog/rise-of-citizen- developers-with-low-code-platforms, accessed: Sept. 30, 2024.

RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 12-13 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## A COMPREHENSIVE DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION FRAMEWORK FOR IT ORGANIZATIONS

#### Diana Predoaia

Transport and Telecommunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1003, Latvia St79143@students.tsi.lv

**Keywords:** Digital transformation, framework, digitalization, technology, strategy, performance measurement, automation

Digital transformation has become a monumental factor in the progress of businesses, ensuring they are able to adapt and keep up with technological advancements, while being able to optimize processes and develop digital strategies (Bouwmans *et al.*, 2024).

This paper analyses the limitations of state-of-the-art digital transformation frameworks and proposes a comprehensive digital transformation framework that includes specific KPIs, in order to help measure its success rate.

This study aims to contribute to the existing knowledge and help close the gap in the literature by offering a clear example of how a digital transformation framework can be applied and customized, while highlighting challenges and areas for potential refinement.

Three different digital transformation frameworks proposed by Trenerry *et al.* (2021), Aras & Büyüközkan (2023) and Kraus *et al.* (2022) have been reviewed. While all these frameworks are centered around technology, human resources and aligning the automation processes with the business goals, they all fail to include specific metrics and KPIs to assess the success rate. Another common factor is the lack of clear, structured steps on how to apply the framework, what are the prerequisites, or the resources needed. In the proposed framework, these elements have been included in an attempt to contribute and help close these gaps in the literature.

The proposed framework contains five main elements: Strategy, Process, Technology, Organization and Performance Measurement. While strategy and technology are common elements found in other frameworks, performance measurement and processes are not addressed in the literature, even though they are highly relevant. Each of these elements contains specific goals, tasks and subtasks, such as creating a strategic roadmap, selecting the automation tool and designing the new process among others.

When it comes to performance measurement, a list of KPIs will be used to assess the success rate of the proposed framework, such as Request Processing Time, User Satisfaction, Cost Savings and Error Rate in Processing. These indicators will be calculated using detailed formulas and the results will be compared against specific targets proposed. For example, the Error Rate will be calculated as the Reworked Requests number divided by the Total Requests number, and the User Satisfaction is the average satisfaction score from the surveys sent out to the users.

The proposed framework has been divided into six phases, from assessment to monitoring. Each phase includes a step-by-step list of tasks and objectives to be completed before moving to the next phase.

The timeframe for applying the framework hasn't been established, as it can vary based on the process, the resources allocated, and the technology used. These factors have to be decided based on the complexity, duration and priority of the process. The framework is intended to be used in corporations that activate in the IT area and have an IT support team that is able to design and update processes.

The proposed digital transformation framework will be used on AtlasEdge, a mid-size company specialized in data centres. The process which will be automated consists of creating a

SharePoint site. Once the automation has been completed, the success rate will be assessed by calculating each KPI and comparing the values to the targets. If over 50% of the target values are met, then the digital transformation framework has been successful. Otherwise, the proposed framework has failed, which will lead to further investigation and proposal of potential solutions.

It is worth noting that one of the limitations of the proposed framework is the impact of the organization's size and activity area, as it was tailored to be applied in a mid-size organization activating in IT. Furthermore, another factor is the resource constraint. This framework is comprehensive and requires time and sustained effort to be utilized, as it integrates multiple perspectives, such as: performance measurement, implementation process, resource and prerequisites analysis to ensure a holistic approach.

The research is supervised by Dr.sc.ing., Professor Irina Pticina.

- 1. Aras, G. & Büyüközkan, G. (2023) Digital Transformation Journey Guidance: A Holistic Digital Maturity Model Based on a Systematic Literature Review. *Systems*, 11(213). DOI: https://doi.org/10.3390/systems11040213.
- Bouwmans, M., Lub, X., Orlowski, M., & Nguyen, T.-V. (2024) Developing the digital transformation skills framework: A systematic literature review approach. *PLOS ONE*, 19(7). DOI: https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0304127.
- Kraus, S., Jones, P., Kailer, N., Weinmann, A., Chaparro-Banegas, N., & Roig-Tierno, N. (2021) Digital transformation: An overview of the current state of the art of research. *Sage Open*, 11(3). DOI: https://doi.org/10.1177/21582440211047576.
- Trenerry, B., Chng, S., Wang, Y., Zainal Shah, S., Lim, S. S., Lu, H. Y., & Oh, P. H. (2021) Preparing workplaces for digital transformation: An integrative review and framework of multi-level factors. *Frontiers in Psychology*, 12. DOI: https://doi.org/10.3389/fpsyg.2021.620766.

RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 14 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## **EXPLORING MODEL SELECTION APPROACHES FOR CUSTOMER CHURN PREDICTION IN WEB APPLICATIONS**

#### Jelizaveta Proglada

Transport and Telecommunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia proglada5@inbox.lv

**Keywords:** Customer churn prediction, customer lifetime value (LTV), web applications, machine learning models, customer segmentation

Customer retention is critical to sustainable growth and profitability, as customer churn directly impacts revenue and brand loyalty. One of the main goals of any online business is to reduce customer churn, so companies have realized that customer data is one of the most important resources to achieve this goal (Caigny *et al.*, 2018). However, churn not only results in a direct loss of customer numbers, but also impacts the overall customer lifetime value (LTV) that they bring to a business (Sun *et al.*, 2023). Recognizing that customer value varies widely, it becomes important to assess not only which customers are most likely to churn, but also their lifetime value to the business. By understanding both churn risk and customer value, a more nuanced approach to retention can be developed - prioritizing efforts toward high-value customers with higher churn risk.

This study was conducted to assess not only the likelihood of churn, but also the predicted value each customer brings, providing a richer segmentation framework for targeted retention strategies. Drawing on different machine learning models, the study compared the performance of the models to determine the most suitable approach to predicting churn. Using a dataset that included behavioral, demographic and satisfaction-related features, various machine learning models were applied, including logistic regression, support vector machine, decision tree and random forest. Preprocessing steps were undertaken to prepare the dataset as well as feature analysis to identify the most influential factors affecting both churn and LTV. Additionally, a regression-based approach was implemented to create an LTV estimate for each customer.

Integrating churn prediction with the LTV estimate allowed for a two-dimensional segmentation approach, categorizing customers based on both the risk of churn and their overall value. The analysis selected the most effective models and identified key characteristics that influence customer churn and LTV, which allowed to propose a comprehensive approach.

The results showed that this combined approach provides a deeper understanding of customer segments, allowing to prioritize retention efforts for valuable customers most at risk of churn, as well as select the models that best suit specific requests.

The research is supervised by Dr.sc.ing., Professor Dmitry Pavlyuk.

- 1. Caigny A, Coussement K, De Bock K. (2018) A new hybrid classification algorithm for customer churn prediction based on logistic regression and decision trees. *European Journal of Operational Research*, 269(2), 760-772. doi:10.1016/j.ejor.2018.02.009.
- Sun Y., Liu H., Gao, Y. (2023) Research on customer lifetime value based on machine learning algorithms and customer relationship management analysis model. *Heliyon*, 9(2), e13384. doi:10.1016/j.heliyon.2023.e13384.

RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 15 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## FEAUTURES OF MODERN EVERYDAY TECHNOLOGIES AND TENDENCIES OF RECRUTIEMENT REQUIREMENS IN IT FIELD

#### Reinis Simanovičs

Transport and Telecommunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia Reinis.simanovicsh@gmail.com

Keywords: Digital transformation, IT sector, technical and interpersonal skills, CV optimization

In today's fast-changing IT landscape, automation and artificial intelligence (AI) are fundamentally altering recruitment practices. This research explores how technological advancements are reshaping skill requirements in the IT sector. The goal of this study is to design a program that helps individuals identify key technical and interpersonal competencies—termed "golden points"—to align their profiles with modern employer expectations. The object is recruitment requirements in the IT field, while the subject is the influence of technological progress on these requirements.

The deliverables of this research include:

- 1. A systematic analysis of recruitment trends influenced by digital transformation.
- 2. Identification of essential skills and competencies prioritized by IT employers.
- 3. Development of a CV optimization tool using Python and SQL for tailored job applications.
- 4. Practical insights for job seekers and employers to navigate the evolving recruitment landscape.

Recent studies emphasize the growing importance of adaptability and hybrid skills in response to rapid technological advancements (SHRM, 2023; Pew Research Center, 2023). By analyzing data from academic sources, industry reports, and recruitment databases, this research highlights the increasing value of interdisciplinary skills. It also addresses the challenges posed by AI in recruitment, such as algorithmic bias, while promoting strategies to ensure fair and inclusive hiring practices.

This study creates a CV optimization tool aimed at enhancing job seekers' profiles to meet IT industry standards, bridging the gap between candidate capabilities and employer needs. By focusing on adaptability, teamwork, and technical proficiency, this research provides actionable tools and insights to improve alignment with the IT sector's evolving recruitment demands.

The research is supervised by Dr.sc.ing., Associate Professor Monta Aleksandra Lacane.

- 1. Frey, C.B. and Osborne, M.A. (2017) The future of employment: How susceptible are jobs to computerisation? *Technological Forecasting and Social Change*, 114. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.techfore.2016.08.019, last accessed 1 December 2024.
- 2. Pew Research Center. (2023) AI in hiring and evaluating workers: What Americans think. Washington, DC: Pew Research Center. Available at: https://www.pewresearch.org/internet/2023/04/20/ai-in-hiring-and-evaluating-workerswhat-americans-think/, last accessed 1 December 2024.
- 3. SHRM. (2023) The impact of AI on recruitment and talent acquisition. Alexandria, VA: Society for Human Resource Management. Available at: https://www.shrm.org/executive-network/insights/the-impact-of-ai-on-talent-acquisition-and-recruitment, last accessed 1 December 2024.



RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 18 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## DEVELOPING AND TESTING STRATEGIES TO REDUCE INVENTORY IN THE FINISHED GOODS WAREHOUSE

#### Valdis Gūtmanis

Transport and Telecommunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia valdis.guutmanis@googlemail.com

Keywords: Finished goods warehouse, inventory management, dynamic approach

A finished goods warehouse in a material goods manufacturing company, like any other warehouse, fulfils the function of a compensating link between the flows of offered and sold products. The peculiarity of such a warehouse, which makes it different from the warehouses used in retail chains, is the fact that the products entering the warehouse are not the result of their purchase from external suppliers but are produced at the enterprise itself. This means that actions to manage the input flow of finished products of the warehouse lead to the need to take appropriate actions in the field of operational planning and management of the production process at the enterprise.

The positive and negative effects that arise when the number of items in the finished goods warehouse greatly exceeds some optimal levels are well known (Arnold *et al.*, 2008). Positive is the high ability of the warehouse to fulfil customer orders. Also, positive effects can be observed in manufacturing, which can produce products in large batches under such conditions and save time required for equipment changeover. Negative effects are associated with an increase in all types of warehouse maintenance costs, but very important for the company may be the amount of frozen capital, which is proportional to the volume of products produced but not sold.

The work considers the characteristics of the functioning of a finished goods warehouse in a company with two types of production: production to order and production to stock (Gudehus, 2005). After a short review of traditional inventory management methods, a relatively new approach called 'dynamic warehouse inventory management' is emphasised (Gudehus, 2006). This approach is based on a short- or medium-term forecast of demand for products stored in a company's warehouse. The main advantage of dynamic inventory management is that there are no limitations on the flexibility of algorithms that determine the two main parameters of the replenishment process: at what point in time and how much product needs to be delivered to the warehouse.

As a specific object of the study, we consider an enterprise that manufactures plastic profiles for window constructions. The work presents the dynamics of both the real stock during 2023 and the calculated reduced stock, which is the result of the application of the developed dynamic stock management strategies.

The research is supervised by Dr. habil. sc. ing., Professor Jurijs Tolujevs.

- 1. Arnold, D., Isermann, H., Kuhn, A., Tempelmeier, H., Furmans, K. (2008) *Handbuch. Logistik.* 3., neu bearbeitete Auflage, Springer.
- 2. Gudehus, T. (2005) Logistik: Grundlagen Strategien Anwendungen. 3., neu bearb. Auflage, Springer.
- 3. Gudehus, T. (2006) Dynamische Disposition. Springer.

RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 19 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## CILVĒKRESURSU VADĪBA PASAŽIERU PĀRVADĀJUMOS: PROBLĒMU ANALĪZE UN STRATĒĢIJAS MŪSDIENU TRANSPORTA NOZARES IZAICINĀJUMU PĀRVARĒŠANAI

#### Artūrs Ābols

Transport and Telecommunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia arthurabols@gmail.com

Atslēgvārdi: pasažieru transports, izaicinājumi transporta nozarē, darbinieku noturēšana un apmācība, cilvēkresursu vadība, tehnoloģiskās pārmaiņas un pielāgošanās, ekonomiskā ilgtspēja

*"Transports ir tā tautsaimniecības nozare, bez kuras nevar pastāvēt ne viena cita ražotne, pat ne parastākais pārtikas veikals"*, tā saka Sprancmanis (Sprancmanis, 2001)

Efektīva cilvēkresursu pārvaldība ir viens no svarīgākajiem attīstības faktoriem nākotnē, jo efektīva cilvēkresursu pārvaldība ir būtiska transporta nozares konkurētspējai un ilgtermiņa attiecībai. Personāla problēmu pārvaldība tieši sekmē darba produktivitātes, pakalpojumu kvalitātes un ekonomiskās ilgtspējas uzlabošanu pasažieru pārvadājumos.

Transporta nozarē ir vairāki ar cilvēkresursiem saistīti izaicinājumi, tostarp novecojošs darbaspēks, nepietiekami kvalificēts personāls un nepieciešamība pastāvīgi pielāgoties tehnoloģiskajām pārmaiņām. Šīs problēmas ietekmē transporta uzņēmumu spēju sniegt augstas kvalitātes pakalpojumus un apmierināt tirgus pieprasījumu.

Stratēģiskās pieejas cilvēkresursu vadības problēmu pārvarēšanai ir personāla apmācība un to prasmju attīstīšana. Ieguldījumi darbinieku apmācībā var mazināt kvalificēta personāla trūkumu. Iniciatīvas ietver sadarbību ar izglītības iestādēm un mācību programmu ieviešanu, lai uzlabotu darbinieku tehnoloģiskās prasmes. Tehnoloģiskā pielāgošanās ar automatizētu un digitālu sistēmu ieviešanai ir nepieciešamas efektīvas stratēģijas darbinieku apmācībai un netraucētas pārejas veicināšanai, kas ir būtiski, lai saglabātu augstu sniegto pakalpojumu līmeni.

Pētījuma zinātniskais vadītājs Dr.sc.ing, asociētā profesore Vaira Gromule.

#### Izmantotā literatūra

- 1. Cascetta E., Pagliar F. (2013) Public engagement for planning and designing transportation systems. *Procedia-Social and Behavioral Sciences*, 87, 103-116.
- 2. Johnson, J.C., Wood, D.F. (1995) *Contemporary Transportation*. 5th ed. Upper Saddle River; NJ: Prentice-Hall International.
- 3. Sprancmanis, N., (2001) Transporta pakalpojumu ekonomika un organizācija.
- 4. IRU pasaules autotransporta organizācija. (2024) Global driver shortages 2023 year review. Available at https://www.iru.org/news- resources/newsroom/global-driver-shortages-2023-year-review, skatīts: 26.11.2024.
- 5. Latvijas Autotransporta direkcija. (2024) https://www.atd.lv/lv/jaunumi/sabiedrisk%C4%81-transporta-pakalpojumu-nozariraksturojo%C5%A1ie-r%C4%81d%C4%ABt%C4%81ji-unp%C4%81rskait%C4%ABt%C4%81s-valsts-9, skatīts: 22.11.2024.

RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 20 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## MOBILITĀTES PUNKTU PIELĀGOŠANA LIETOTĀJU KULTŪRAS UN PSIHOLOĢISKAJĀM ĪPATNĪBĀM: PIEEJAS LIETOTĀJU PIEREDZES UZLABOŠANAI

#### Elīna Troicka

Transport and Telecommunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia elina99troickaja@gmail.com

Atslēgvārdi: Mobilitātes punkti, transporta mezgli, lietotāju pieredzes uzlabošana, psiholoģiskie faktori

Mūsdienu pilsētvides attīstība lielā mērā ir atkarīga no sabiedriskā transporta, kas nodrošina cilvēku pārvietošanas brīvību. Mobilitātes punktu izveide un transporta sistēmu uzlabošana ir ļoti svarīgs un nopietns kvalitatīvas pilsētvides aspekts, taču lietotāju kultūras un psiholoģisko faktoru neievērošana ļoti bieži samazina to efektivitāti. Šī darba ietvaros tiek pētīta lietotāju apmierinātība ar mobilitātes punktiem, uzsverot psiholoģiskos un kultūras faktorus, kas ietekmē mobilitātes punktu un sabiedriskā transporta izmantošanas pieredzi.

"Mobilitātes punkts" un "transporta mezgls" termiņiem nav vienotas klasifikācijas, un tas mulsina lietotājus. Turklāt, izstrādājot mobilitātes punktus, bieži vien netiek ņemtas vērā lietotāju prasības, psiholoģiskie un kultūras atšķirības par labu ekonomiskiem un tehnoloģiskiem apsvērumiem. Rezultātā var rasties infrastruktūra, kas ir neērta lietotājiem un nav saprotams kas tas ir.

Šī pētījuma mērķis ir definēt "mobilitātes punktu" klasifikāciju, noteikt lietotāju apmierinātības līmeni un problēmas, ar kurām lietotāji saskarās. Kā piemērs tiks izmantots mobilitātes punkts "Bērnu slimnīca". Izmantojot lietotāju aptaujas anketu un iegūtos datus, tiks izstrādāti priekšlikumi mobilitātes punktu uzlabošanai, ņemot vērā psiholoģiskos un kultūras faktorus, lai paaugstinātu lietotāju apmierinātības līmeni izmantojot mobilitātes punktu un sabiedrisko transportu Rīgā un tās apkārtnē.

Pētījuma zinātniskais vadītājs Dr.sc.ing, asociētā profesore Evelīna Budiloviča.

#### Izmantotā literatūra

- 1. Cascetta, E., Pagliara, F. (2013) Public Engagement for Planning and Designing Transportation Systems. *Procedia Social and Behavioral Sciences: Elsevier*, 87, 103-116.
- 2. Latvijas Sabiedriskie Mediji (2024) oficiālā vietne. https://www.lsm.lv/raksts/zinas/latvija/15.08.2024-pie-15-dzelzcela-stacijam-riga-veidosmobilitates-punktus.a565183/. Skatīts: 07.11.2024.
- Monzón, A., Hernandez, S., Di Ciommo, F. (2016) Urban Interchanges: The City-HUB Model. *Transportation Research Procedia*, 14, 1124-1133. DOI: 10.1016/j.trpro.2016.05.183.Napreenko L.S., Volkodaeva I.B. (2019) Transporta mezgli urbānas pilsētās. *Federālā valsts budžeta izglītības iestāde augstākās izglītības "Kosigina Krievijas Valsts universitāte"*.
- 4. Pušmans, V. (2020) Metodiskie ieteikumi maršrutu tīklu izstrādei.

RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 21-22 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## IMPLEMENTATION OF MULTIMODAL TRANSPORTATION TO INCREASE SUSTAINABILITY OF LOCAL SUPPLY CHAINS IN INDIA

#### Mohammed Ahsan Shareef

Transport and Telecommunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia St82536@students.tsi.lv

Keywords: Multimodal transportation, sustainable supply chains, India logistics

As the local supply chain is reaching greater heights due to rapid economic growth in India, it could be mandatorily essential that their sustainability way needs to be assessed (Ardra and Barua, 2023). This research investigates the adoption of multimodal transportation systems to alleviate the environmental, economic, and societal issues arising from conventional logistics networks. Multimodal transportation, which covers various modes of transport like road, rail, air and water, is considered an important approach for decreased carbon emissions at a lower cost and increased efficiency in the supply chain functioning, making it relevant to sustainable supply chain practices in India (Elbert *et al.*, 2020). As a signatory to various international agreements like the Paris Accord and COP26 summit that outline aggressive carbon reduction targets, India is supporting national and global sustainability goals with more widespread uptake of multimodal logistics.

This research seeks to study the extent to which multimodal logistics stand to prove transformative for local supply chains by examining its environmental benefits in terms of reduced fuel consumption and greenhouse gas emissions, juxtaposed with predicted economic benefits such as cost savings and improved logistics efficiency. The research presents a broad view connecting three theories: the Triple Bottom Line (TBL), which stresses the need to harmonize the economic, environmental and social pillars of business objectives; and institutional theory, addressing policy and infrastructure support for various logistics practices.

It utilises a range of methodologies; adopts case studies to demonstrate successful multimodal implementations and employs quantitative measures associated with cost and emissions. The qualitative data were drawn from interviews with stakeholders in the logistics sector, including transportation providers, supply chain managers and policy experts, to understand both the challenges and enablers of multimodal systems in India (Kumar and Anbanandam, 2020). The bowtie maps are meant to analyze the current state of regulations and propose actions on when and where to enable a transition towards multimodal solutions, especially where infrastructure development is key.

Key findings are to reflect outcomes of many sorts. Multimodal transportation can help lower logistics costs substantially by utilizing each mode according to its comparative debt — rail for the bulk of long-distance transport and road for last-mile delivery. Multimodal solutions could bring down carbon emissions and other pollutants to a great extent, which can help achieve national goals for sustainable development too. From a social perspective, an efficient multimodal network could facilitate access to goods and services in remote and underserved areas, facilitating equitable regional development and economic inclusion (Xu *et al.*, 2022).

This study will assist the field with a multimodal transportation model suited to the specific supply chain environment in India, along with identifying the crucial policy frameworks, infrastructure requirements and technological advancements to enable multimodal systems (Liu *et al.*, 2021). The results will provide policy recommendations that governments can act upon to

inform investments in sustainable infrastructure and improve regulatory frameworks for multimodal logistics. This leads to the conclusion of this study, where multimodal transportation can provide an effective solution to alleviate issues within the supply chain system in India and pave the way for sustainability, resilience, and inclusiveness. By offering in-depth analysis and pragmatic recommendations, this report aims to positively influence growth towards greener, efficient logistics systems required for sustainable economic growth in India.

The research is supervised by Dr.sc.ing. Associate Professor Genadijs Gromovs.

- 1. Ardra, S. and Barua, M.K. (2023) Inclusion of circular economy practices in the food supply chain: Challenges and possibilities for reducing food wastage in emerging economies like India. *Environment, Development and Sustainability*, 25(12), 13825-13858.
- 2. Elbert, R., Müller, J.P. and Rentschler, J. (2020) Tactical network planning and design in multimodal transportation-A systematic literature review. *Research in Transportation Business & Management*, 35, 100462.
- 3. Kumar, A. and Anbanandam, R. (2020) A flexible policy framework for analysing multimodal freight transportation system in India: SAP–LAP and efficient IRP method. *Global Journal of Flexible Systems* Management, 21, 35-52.
- 4. Liu, Y., Lyu, C., Liu, Z. and Cao, J. (2021) Exploring a large-scale multi-modal transportation recommendation system. *Transportation Research Part C: Emerging Technologies*, 126, 103070.
- 5. Xu, Z., Bai, Q., Shao, Y., Hu, A. and Dong, Z., (2022). A review on passenger emergency evacuation from multimodal transportation hubs. *Journal of traffic and transportation engineering (English edition)*, 9(4), 591-607.



Market: Research, Projects, Technologies and Problems of the Modern Economy and Business

Tirgus: pētījumi, projekti, tehnoloģijas un mūsdienu ekonomikas un biznesa problēmas RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 24 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## DIGITALIZATION OF INTEGRATED REPORTING: SOFTWARE SOLUTIONS AND THEIR IMPACT ON CORPORATE TRANSPARANCY AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

#### Ferangiz Abdurakhmonova

Transport and Telecommunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia Nfaxulaevna17@gmail.com

**Keywords:** Digitalization of integrated reporting, corporate transparency, software solutions, ESG integrated reporting 4.0

The digitalization of integrated reporting (IR) represents an important stage in the development of corporate governance, aimed at increasing the transparency, accessibility and analytical value of reporting in the digital era. Integrated reporting 4.0, which leverages digital technologies, not only improves transparency and accessibility of reporting, but also enables deeper analysis and forecasting through the use of tools such as artificial intelligence and big data (ACCA, 2020). The study's main objective is to provide an overview of the capabilities of modern software solutions for the digitalization of information technology in accordance with the IIRC framework, including their impact on corporate transparency, data management and the sustainable development of companies.

The study provides the overview of the existing software platforms such as Workiva (Workiva, 2023), SAP (SAP, 2023), Microsoft Power BI (Microsoft, 2023), Thomson Reuters Eikon ESG (Thomson Reuters, 2023) and Envizi (IBM, 2023). Their functionality, integration with corporate systems and compliance with IIRC and ESG standards have been studied. The methodology included a comparative analysis of the characteristics of the platforms and their practical application in creating integrated reports. The results showed that each software solution provides unique opportunities for digitalization of IR. Workiva and SAP focus on data integration and risk management, Microsoft Power BI provides visualization and analytical capabilities, Thomson Reuters Eikon provides broad access to ESG data, and Envizi focuses on sustainability and environmental aspects.

There are several conclusions can be made that digitalization of integrated reporting through modern software solutions allows companies not only to adapt to the growing demands for transparency and sustainable development, but also to increase the confidence of stakeholders, including investors and regulators. However, successful implementation of digitalization requires overcoming challenges such as ensuring data connectivity and reliability, which underscores the need for further improvements in technology and regulatory frameworks.

The research is supervised by Dr.oec., Professor Irina Kuzmina-Merlino.

- 1. ACCA. (2020) Insights into Integrated Reporting 4.0: The Story So Far. Available at: https://www.accaglobal.com/content/dam/ACCA\_Global/professional-insights/IR\_4/PI-INSIGHTS- IR-4.0.pdf, accessed 19 November 2024.
- 2. IBM. (2023) *Envizi:* Achieving Sustainability Goals. Available at: https://www.ibm.com/envizi, accessed 19 November 2024.
- 3. Microsoft, 2023. *Power BI for Integrated Reporting*. Available at: https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/power-bi, accessed 19 November 2024.
- 4. SAP. (2023) SAP Solutions for Integrated Reporting. Available at: https://www.sap.com/integrated- reporting, accessed 19 November 2024.
- 5. Thomson Reuters. (2023) Eikon for Financial and Non-financial Reporting. Available at: https://www.thomsonreuters.com/en/eikon.html, accessed 19 November 2024.

RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 25-26 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## DEVELOPMENT OF DIGITAL BUSINESS IN EUROPEAN BANKS DURING CRISIS

#### Nijat Masmaliyev

Transport and Telecommunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia nicatmasmaliyev@gmail.com

Keywords: Digital banking, crisis, digital transformation, digital business, European banks

The digitalization journey plays a crucial role in a bank's competitive positioning in the market. Institutions that have effectively adopted technological updates maintain a strong position in the banking business. Despite notable advancements in digital banking, numerous European banks encounter substantial challenges in adapting their digital business models during financial crises. This struggle to navigate the complexities of the digital economy amid economic instability raises critical questions regarding the resilience, operational efficiency, and customer engagement of these institutions. This research aims to investigate historical case studies and develop a novel, efficient business model for banks that facilitates the adoption of innovative practices. The object of the research is the European Union banking system, and the subject of the research is the adoption and the use of digital banking services during crisis.

A successful model for banks must meet the evolving demands of stakeholders. The development of new technology should incorporate customer behavior, an aspect initially studied in the Theory of Reasoned Action (TRA) Model (Fishbein & Ajzen, 1975). Subsequently, this theory was expanded into the Technology Acceptance Model (TAM and TAM2), respectively developed by Davis (1993) and Venkatesh (2000). However, existing literature has not adequately considered the economic and financial indicators involved in the process of adopting new technologies, nor the behavioral aspects of stakeholders in different socio-economic contexts. COVID-19 has rapidly increased the need for digitalization (McKinsey & Company, 2020), bringing both opportunities and challenges for banks. Consequently, traditional service models, such as physical branches and extended wait times, have lost favor, prompting many banks to either limit these services or transition entirely to digital platforms and improve digital offerings, including mobile applications.

In the study, qualitative and quantitative methods are used. The research will focus on compiling statistical data related to the digitalization of services in European banks and will conduct a comparative analysis with banks in Asia and the US to identify potential challenges. What challenges do European banks face in adopting new technologies and digital services compared to their counterparts in the US and Asia? Which regulations are hindering the digital transformation process? What model should be implemented to enhance agility in meeting customer demands? How do economic and financial crises impact the digital transformation of banking services?

A developed efficient model will be easily adoptable by European banks to improve digital offerings and adopt innovations even in crisis periods, instead of deprioritizing internal digitalization projects. The economic and financial indicators, especially amid crises, must be added to the components of the business models.

The research is supervised by Dr.oec., Professor Inna Stecenko.

- 1. Davis, F. D. (1993) User acceptance of information technology: System characteristics, user perceptions and behavioral impacts. *International Journal of Man-Machine Studies*, 38(3), 475-487. https://doi.org/10.1006/imms.1993.1022.
- 2. Fishbein, M., & Ajzen, I. (1975) *Belief, attitude, intention and behavior: An introduction to theory and research.* Reading, MA: Addison-Wesley.
- Venkatesh, V. & Davis, F. (2000) A Theoretical extension of the technology acceptance model: Four longitudinal field studies. *Management Science*, 46, 186-204. 10.1287/mnsc.46.2.186.11926.

RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 27-28 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## CHALLENGES AND OPPORTUNITIES FOR LLM-POWERED AGENTS IN SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

#### Maksim Ilin

Transport and Telecommunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV1019, Latvia st83835@students.tsi.lv

**Keywords**: Supply chain management, large language models, literature review, explainable AI, autonomous agents

The integration of Artificial Intelligence (AI), particularly Large Language Models (LLMs) and LLM-based agent networks, has the potential to revolutionize Supply Chain Management (SCM) by enhancing decision support systems and operational efficiencies. This raises the critical research question: What are the key challenges and opportunities in deploying LLM-powered agent-based information systems within SCM? However, the deployment of LLM-powered agents in SCM presents a complex array of challenges that have yet to be systematically explored in existing literature. This paper presents a broad literature review on the application of Large Language Models (LLMs) in Supply Chain Management (SCM), aiming to synthesize current research and identify critical challenges and opportunities.

This study employs a comprehensive literature review methodology focused on AI in Supply Chain Management (SCM), particularly generative AI and decision support systems. Q1 and Q2 open-access journals have been selected from the Scimago Journal Rank, targeting areas such as decision making, supply chains, AI, and autonomous agents. Initially, six research areas with focus on SCM were defined: The Data-Science Specialist Shortage and its Impact; AI/LLM Applications in Decision Support; Human-AI Collaboration in Corporate Management; Challenges and Limitations of LLMs in SCM; Decision-Making Processes (General, Corporate, and SCM); and Autonomous Agents and Agentic Systems. For each area, ten research questions were formulated, each accompanied by three search queries. Publications were retrieved using online search services like Semantic Scholar, Google Scholar, and Scite.ai. The collected literature was systematically analyzed to synthesize findings and identify research gaps.

By systematically analyzing existing studies, this review elucidates the multifaceted role of LLMs in enhancing decision support systems and operational efficiencies within SCM. However, following key challenges were identified during the review (ordered by the risks for SCM domain author's estimation, from high to moderate):

• Data Integration and Heterogeneity: Integrating LLMs with legacy systems and diverse data sources remains a significant obstacle, complicating the effective utilization of LLMs in SCM contexts (Jha *et al.*, 2020).

• Security Concerns: Protecting sensitive supply chain data during LLM integration is paramount to prevent breaches and ensure the integrity of SCM systems (Deshmukh & Srinivasa, 2022).

• Scalability and Computational Resources: The deployment of LLMs demands substantial processing power, presenting scalability challenges, especially for smaller organizations (Gokmen, 2021; Schroeder & Lodemann, 2021) or edge devices.

• Explainability: A lack of transparency in LLM-driven decision-making hinders trust and adoption among SCM professionals, underscoring the necessity for explainable AI techniques (Agostinho, 2023).

• Ethical Considerations: Issues such as data privacy and responsible AI use must be meticulously addressed to ensure that the deployment of LLMs does not exacerbate existing disparities within supply chains (Cheng *et al.*, 2021).

• Bias in LLM Outputs: The propensity of LLMs to perpetuate biases present in training data poses ethical and practical challenges, potentially leading to discriminatory outcomes in decision-making processes (Cerezo-Martínez, 2024).

Despite these challenges, LLMs offer promising opportunities for enhancing decisionmaking in SCM. The ability of LLMs to process and analyze vast amounts of data can empower organizations to identify potential risks and vulnerabilities in their supply chain networks, leading to improved resilience and efficiency (Lee & Mangalaraj, 2022). However, the scarcity of research on LLM-powered agent networks in SCM presents a significant research gap. This paper identifies this gap and highlights the need for future research to explore the development and implementation of fully integrated LLM-powered agent networks within SCM contexts.

In conclusion, this literature review underscores the transformative potential of LLMs in SCM while highlighting the critical challenges that must be addressed to fully harness their capabilities. Future research should explore the applicability of LLM-based agent networks for decision support in SCM, with a particular focus on urban supply chains and specific challenges such as the bullwhip effect and fresh food logistics. Addressing these areas will be pivotal in advancing the integration of LLMs into supply chain practices, ultimately contributing to more resilient and efficient supply networks.

The research is supervised by Dr.sc.ing., Professor Dmitry Pavlyuk.

- 1. Agostinho, C., Dikopoulou, Z., Lavasa, E., Perakis, K., Pitsios, S., Branco, R., Reji, S., Hetterich, J., Biliri, E., Lampathaki, F. and Rodríguez Del Rey, S. (2023) Explainability as the key ingredient for AI adoption in Industry 5.0 settings. *Frontiers in Artificial Intelligence*, 6, 1264372.
- 2. Cerezo-Martínez, P., Nicolás-Sánchez, A. and Castro-Toledo, F.J. (2024) Analyzing the European institutional response to ethical and regulatory challenges of artificial intelligence in addressing discriminatory bias. *Frontiers in Artificial Intelligence*, 7, 1393259.
- 3. Cheng, L., Varshney, K.R. and Liu, H. (2021) Socially responsible AI algorithms: Issues, purposes, and challenges. *Journal of Artificial Intelligence Research*, 71, 1137-1181.
- 4. Deshmukh, J. and Srinivasa, S. (2022) Computational transcendence: Responsibility and agency. *Frontiers in Robotics and AI*, 9, 977303.
- Ferreira, C., Cardoso, C., Travassos, M., Paiva, M., Pestana, M., Lopes, J.M. and Oliveira, M. (2021) Disorders, vulnerabilities and resilience in the supply chain in pandemic times. *Logistics*, 5(3), 48.
- 6. Gokmen, T. (2021) Enabling training of neural networks on noisy hardware. *Frontiers in Artificial Intelligence*, 4, 699148.
- 7. Herden, T.T. and Bunzel, S. (2018) Archetypes of supply chain analytics initiatives—An exploratory study. *Logistics*, 2(2), 10.
- 8. Jha, S., Jha, M., O'Brien, L., Cowling, M. and Wells, M. (2020) Leveraging the organisational legacy: understanding how businesses integrate legacy data into their big data plans. *Big Data and Cognitive Computing*, 4(2), 15.
- 9. Lee, I. and Mangalaraj, G. (2022) Big data analytics in supply chain management: A systematic literature review and research directions. *Big Data and Cognitive Computing*, 6(1), 17.
- 10. Schroeder, M. and Lodemann, S. (2021) A systematic investigation of the integration of machine learning into supply chain risk management. *Logistics*, 5(3), 62.
- 11. Seyedan, M. and Mafakheri, F. (2020) Predictive big data analytics for supply chain demand forecasting: methods, applications, and research opportunities. *Journal of Big Data*, 7(1), 53.

RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 29-30 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## ANOMALY DETECTION IN FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS DATA

#### Ibrahim Israfilov

Transport and Telecommunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia ibragim.israfilov@gmail.com

Keywords: Fraud analytics, anomaly detection, explainable AI, adversarial machine learning

Fraudulent activities can significantly disrupt the operational efficiency of both consumers and businesses, leading to financial losses and diminished trust between two parties. Within the payments industry, fraud is a critical concern, with projections estimating a total loss of \$32 billion by 2024, equivalent to approximately 6.5 cents for every \$100 spent using payment cards (Merchant Savvy, 2024).

One of the most effective solutions for combatting against fraud activities is fraud analytics. Fraud analytics involves utilizing data-driven techniques to identify, recognize, and mitigate fraudulent activities within data sets or real-time streams (Bockel-Rickermann, 2023). In fact, in contrast to 44% in 2021, 53% of businesses in 2023 recognized fraud analytics as their primary tool for combating fraudulent activity.

The research problem lies in the adversarial nature of fraudulent transactions, particularly the phenomenon of concept drift and the need for model explainability, which together significantly compromise the performance of fraud detection models. As the nature of fraud evolves over time, models become less sensitive to new fraud cases and fail to detect them, resulting in high false-negative rates and substantial financial damages when applied in real-life scenarios (Bockel-Rickermann, 2023). This research aims to address this problem by developing fraud analytics methods to enhance model robustness and interpretability, enabling them to adapt to evolving fraud and mitigate the challenges posed by concept drift in fraud detection systems.

The gap in the current literature can be recognized in the lack of effective methods that address-both the evolving nature of fraud and the challenges related to model explainability which are interconnected. Existing fraud detection framework is vulnerable to concept drift, which leads to decreased performance over time. Additionally, many high-performing models used in fraud analytics remain "black-box" (Bockel-Rickermann, 2023) in nature, limiting their transparency and the ability to explain their decision-making processes (Morley, 2020)

This paper is the initial stage of PhD research and aims to conduct a systematic review and evaluation of existing Machine Learning (ML) and Artificial Intelligence (AI) methods used in fraud detection. This stage will focus on the reviewing of these methods, analyzing their strengths and weaknesses, and identifying their applicability to different fraud scenarios. The objective is to highlight the gaps in current ML and AI approaches for development of robust anomaly detection models for fraud activities in transactional data and design a novel solution which will improve robustness and interpretability of the existing fraud detection systems.

The research is supervised by Dr.sc.ing., Professor Irina Yatskiv.

#### References

 Anthi, E., Williams, L, Rhode, M., Burnap, P., Wedgbury, A. (2021) Adversarial attacks on machine learning cybersecurity defences in Industrial Control Systems, *Journal of Information Security and Applications*, 58, 102717. ISSN 2214-126, https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jisa.2020.102717.

- Bhattacharyya, S., Sanjeev, J., Tharakunnel, K., Westland, C. (2011) Data mining for credit card fraud: A comparative study. *Decision Support Systems*, 50(3), 602-613. ISSN 0167-9236, https://doi.org/10.1016/j.dss.2010.08.008.
- Bockel-Rickermann, C., Verdonck, T., Verbeke,W. (2023) Fraud analytics: A decade of research: Organizing challenges and solutions in the field. *Expert Systems with Applications*, 232, 120605. ISSN 0957-4174, https://doi.org/10.1016/j.eswa.2023.120605.
- 4. Merchant Savvy. (2024) Payment Fraud Statistics, Trends & Forecasts 2024. Available at https://www.merchantsavvy.co.uk/payment-fraud-statistics/
- Morley, J., Floridi, L., Kinsey, L., Elhalah A. (2020) From what to how: an initial review of publicly available ai ethics tools, methods and research to translate principles into practices. *Sci Eng Ethics*, 26, 2141–2168. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11948-019-00165-5.
- 6. West, J., Bhattacharya, M. (2016) Intelligent financial fraud detection: A comprehensive review. *Computers & Security*, 57, 47-66. ISSN 0167-4048, https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cose.2015.09.005.

RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 31-32 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## DEVELOPMENT OF DIGITAL SKILLS FOR HUMAN RESOURCES IN THE BANKING SECTOR IN SRI LANKA

#### D.H. Nilusha Erangi

Transport and Telecommunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia dnilusha@hotmail.com

Keywords: Digital skills, human resources, banking sector, digital transformation, Sri Lanka

Human resources (HR) personnel in Sri Lanka's banking industry are now expected to possess sophisticated digital skills to boost organisational competitiveness, as the sector undergoes fast digital transformation (Galhena, 2022). However, there is a lack of knowledge to identify what unique digital competencies are needed by HR professionals in the Sri Lankan banking industry and how these competencies can be enhanced (Chandradasa & Priyashantha, 2021). This research aim is to assess the state of digital competencies among HR managers, defines challenges to further development of such competencies, and investigates effective methods of training them. The research has research objectives: evaluation level of digital skills among HR professionals in banks.

This research study uses a mixed-methods approach using surveys and semi-structured interviews with HR professionals and managers to collect both qualitative and quantitative data. Quantitative data are analyzed using statistical methods to determine the overall level of digital skills. Qualitative data from interviews are analyzed using thematic analysis to identify key themes and patterns regarding the challenges and opportunities for skill development Key objective is to assess human resources professionals' digital skill sets, find obstacles to their professional growth, and investigate effective strategies for skill improvement

The findings suggest that there is increased chance of the digital skills development in HR professionals when backed with good organizational support in terms of funding, time and administrative support. The better trained and the closer to their working context, the higher digital skills' proficiency levels that it appears HR professionals can attain. Advanced, functional, and intuitive technological resources can largely facilitate the acquisition of and implementation of the digital competencies in the practical activities. Findings also suggest that strongly motivated and flexible workforce would be even more active in acquiring and incorporating digital innovations.

According to the context of this research, it supports Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) 4: Quality Education and 8: Decent Work to demonstrate the importance of digital skills to generate innovation and organizational growth (UNDP, 2024). The study provides real-world recommendations for HR managers, banks, and government authorities on how to integrate digital competencies into the banks' workforce for continuous development and to produce personnel to address future demands of the continually developing banking sector.

The research is supervised by Dr.oec., Professor Inna Stecenko.

#### References

1. Chandradasa, I. & Priyashantha, K. (2021) Key Determinants of E-HRM Adoption Behavior; Banking Sector in Sri Lanka. In: *Proceedings of the 10th International Conference on Management and Economics*, 270-280.

- 2. Du, Z. & Wang, Q. (2024) The power of financial support in accelerating digital transformation and corporate innovation in China: evidence from banking and capital markets. *Financial Innovation*, 10(76), 1-34.
- 3. Galhena, B. (2022) Determinants of operational e-HRM adoption behavior of the firms in Sri Lanka: An integrated model. *Kelaniya Journal of Human Resource Management*, 17(1), 24-59.
- 4. Liu, J., Puah, C.-H., Arip, M. A. & Jong, M.-C. (2023) Impacts of digital financial inclusion on urban–rural income disparity: A comparative research of the Eastern and Western Regions in China. *Economies*, 11(11), 1-14.
- 5. Lukić, J. (2023) The impact of digital technologies on employee engagement: Case study of Company "A" in Serbia. *The European Journal of Applied Economics*, 20(2), 29-40.
- 6. Mazurchenko, A. & Maršíková, K. (2019) Digitally-powered human resource management: skills and roles in the Digital Era. *Acta Informatica Pragensia*, 8(2), 72-87.
- 7. Tagscherer, F. & Carbon, C.-C. (2023) Leadership for successful digitalization: A literature review on companies' internal and external aspects of digitalization. *Sustainable Technology and Entrepreneurship*, 2(2).
- 8. UNDP. (2024) *The SDGS in action*. Available at: https://www.undp.org/sustainable-development-goals, accessed 22 November 2024].

RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 33-34 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## USING DATA ANALYTICS TO UNDERSTAND AND INFLUENCE CUSTOMER BEHAVIOR IN DIGITAL CUSTOMER COMMUNICATION

#### Taley Muhammad

Transport and Telecommunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia taleymicma@gmail.com

**Keywords:** Customer behavior, data analytics, digital communication, customer segmentation, customer engagement, e-commerce growth

Customer behavior analysis has been highly important in the digital era to provide a competitive advantage through personalized experience and targeted communication (BuzzBoard, 2024). The aim of the research is to explore the application of data analytics to understand and influence customer behavior in digital customer communication. Utilizing big data and machine learning techniques, companies gain insights into consumer preferences, engagement patterns, and the decision-making process (Chen *et al.*, 2022). Furthermore, the research examines how real-time data collection and feedback loops can optimize content delivery and interaction quality, fostering loyalty and enhancing customer satisfaction.

The research question is: "How can data analytics be used to understand and influence customer behavior in digital communication, and what strategies can optimize customer engagement and satisfaction in e-commerce settings? The subject of the study is the application of data analytics tools (e.g., predictive modeling, sentiment analysis, machine learning) to digital communication strategies; the object of the study is e-commerce. This research addresses the use of data analytics to understand and predict customer behavior in the context of digital customer communication channels. It investigates whether data-focused strategies can improve customer engagement, personalization, and satisfaction, thereby aiding in business advancement within the e-commerce sector. This research adopts a mixed-methods approach that combines quantitative techniques such as predictive analytics and sentiment analysis of customer behavior trends and the influence of real-time data, as well as actionable insights for businesses seeking to refine their communication strategies.

This research would contribute to investigating customer behavior patterns, the effects due to real-time data and pragmatic implications of such study towards businesses aiming at fine-tuning their messages. It is supposed to provide a practical framework for businesses to personalize communication, anticipate customer needs, and improve overall satisfaction. The obtained results would offer meaningful recommendations on how to use data analysis for building better customer relationships, increasing user experience, and brand loyalty.

The results show a way to integrating a data-driven strategies into digital communications that highlights customer perception and contributes to growing e-commerce demand. So, this paper assists more general comprehension of digital customer communication, providing some useful approach to corporation at using its Online formulate for involving customers and extending their loyalty (Smolic, 2024).

The research is supervised by Dr.sc.administr., Professor Yulia Stukalina.

- 1. BuzzBoard. (2024) *Behavioral Science: Analyzing Customer Behavior through Data Insights*. Available at: https://www.buzzboard.ai/behavioral-science-analyzing-customer-behavior- through-data-insights/.
- 2. Chen, Y., Li, C., Wang, H. (2022) Big data and predictive analytics for business intelligence: A bibliographic study (2000–2021). *Forecasting* 2022, 4(4), 767-786. https://doi.org/10.3390/forecast4040042.
- 3. Smolic, H. (2024) *Analyzing Customer Behavior for Digital Agencies*. Available at: https://graphite-note.com/analyzing-customer-behavior-for-digital-agencies/.

RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 35-36 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## SUSTAINABLE GOAL MANAGEMENT AND ENHANCED PASSENGER ENGAGEMENT IN AVIATION: LITERATURE REVIEW

#### **Christy Oommen Jacob**

Transport and Telecomunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia christyoj@gmail.com

**Keywords**: Air passenger transport, sustainability, airline efficiency, artificial intelligence, behavioral science, passenger engagement, literature review

Climate change is one of the biggest challenges facing humanity today, and to address it, we need to develop solutions that include changing our personal habits towards more sustainable practices. And especially transport as an area where we need to stimulate interest in the topic and promote key actions to ensure aviation sustainability. As the aviation industry faces the urgent need to address climate change, sustainability has become a central focus for airlines and related sectors. As challenges mount and regulations become more stringent, the industry is under enormous pressure to innovate. And artificial intelligence (AI) is becoming a powerful tool to implement sustainable practices and transform the future of aviation (Kabashkin *et al.*, 2023).

The aviation industry is undergoing a significant transformation driven by the dual imperatives of operational efficiency and sustainability. With international policies such as the Carbon Offsetting and Reduction Scheme for International Aviation (CORSIA) and increasing consumer demand for environmentally responsible travel, airlines face growing challenges to innovate operational and resource management strategies. The COVID-19 pandemic has further accelerated the urgency for digital transformation, as airlines strive to rebuild in a manner that prioritizes sustainability and resilience. These factors make the integration of AI with behavioural science a timely and necessary exploration to meet modern challenges while improving passenger engagement and satisfaction.

This research devotes to literature review the integration of digital tools and behavioural science to optimize inflight resource management, reduce waste, and promote sustainable passenger behaviour and is a step in formulating the research problem in a PhD study. The main research question of this step is "What are the current literature trends in this topic and what is the manner in which they can be classified?"

Current literature classifies AI applications within aviation into categories of operational control, customer service, and environmental management. Operational control research examines predictive models to optimize scheduling, crew management, and resource allocation (Geske *et al.*, 2024). Customer service research focuses on AI applications that enhance the passenger journey through tailored interactions, including virtual assistants and chatbots, to provide personalized guidance and real-time updates (Eshaghi *et al.*, 2024). In environmental management, AI applications seek to reduce fuel use, improve route efficiency, and minimize waste in inflight services, thus advancing the sustainability agenda of the airline sector. The AI-Airline-Efficiency-Model provides a structured framework for categorizing these applications, delineating AI functions across operational, marketing, and efficiency domains to achieve a balance between operational objectives and environmental imperatives (Geske *et al.*, 2024).

Technologies such as Machine Learning and Natural Language Processing have transitioned from theoretical constructions to practical applications, significantly enhancing realtime decision-making within airline operations. This evolution toward data-driven methodologies enhances operational efficiency and supports sustainability objectives by minimizing emissions and conserving resources (Zhang and Wan, 2024). Recent studies underscore that integrating AI into core airline functions offers considerable potential for fuel optimization, schedule management, and passenger flow, collectively contributing to the industry's environmental targets (Geske *et al.*, 2024). A trend toward holistic, cross-departmental AI framework is also emerging, moving beyond isolated implementations to adaptable, organization-wide models that dynamically respond to fluctuating operational demands in air travel (Eshaghi *et al.*, 2024).

AI is emerging as a transformative tool for tackling inflight waste and enhancing sustainability. For instance, KLM's implementation of predictive AI models has reduced inflight food waste by up to 63%, highlighting the potential of data-driven systems to optimize meal provisioning based on passenger trends (IATA 2024). Similarly, Airbus's Food Scanner technology tracks onboard food consumption and waste, enabling precise catering adjustments and yielding potential double-digit reductions in CO2 emissions through weight and fuel savings (Airbus, 2023).

Based on current literature and industry practices, this study suggests that the integrated use of AI and behavioral insights can be used to develop personalized onboard services, reduce waste, and optimize resource use. By combining AI's predictive capabilities with behavioral modeling, airlines can simultaneously improve passenger satisfaction and achieve their environmental goals.

Future research may benefit from exploring AI-driven behavioural interventions designed to promote sustainable choices among passengers, such as voluntary carbon offsetting, waste reduction, and environmentally conscious consumption behaviours (Mello and Macario, 2024). Additionally, research could focus on adaptive AI models that refine inflight service offerings in response to passenger preferences and behaviours, thus optimizing waste management and improving service efficacy (Soklaridis *et al.*, 2024). Establishing an adaptive, cross-functional AI framework that integrates behavioural insights into passenger engagement strategies may yield a powerful tool for optimizing resources and reducing environmental impact, while simultaneously enhancing passenger satisfaction.

## The research is supervised by Dr.sc.ing., Professor Irina Yatskiv and Dr.sc.ing., Professor Iyad Alomar.

- 1. Airbus. (2023) Can the tracking of in-flight catering improve airline sustainability. Available at: https://www.airbus.com/en/newsroom/stories/2022-06-can-the-tracking-of-in-flight-catering-improve-airline-sustainability.
- 2. Eshaghi, M.S., Afshardoost, M., Lohmann, G. and Moyle, B.D. (2024) Drivers and outcomes of airline passenger satisfaction: A meta-analysis. *Journal of the Air Transport Research Society*, 3, 100034.
- 3. Geske, A.M., Herold, D.M. and Kummer, S. (2024) Integrating AI support into a framework for collaborative decision-making (CDM) for airline disruption management. *Journal of the Air Transport Research Society*, 3, 100026.
- 4. IATA. (2024) Sustainable Cabin. Available at: https://www.iata.org/en/programs/sustainability/cabin-waste/.
- 5. Kabashkin, I., Misnevs, B., & Zervina, O. (2023) Artificial Intelligence in aviation: New professionals or new technologies. *Applied Sciences*, 13(21), 11660. https://doi.org/10.3390/app132111660.
- 6. Mello, F.P. and Macario, R. (2024) Tourist behavior and awareness in airline voluntary carbon offset programs: A Portuguese perspective. *Journal of the Air Transport Research Society*, 3(2024), 100042.
- 7. Soklaridis, S., Murray, E., Asrar, G., and Wilks, B. (2024) A novel approach to measure perceived customer centricity in the passenger airline industry: Index development and validation. *Journal of the Air Transport Research Society*, 3(2024), 100045.
- 8. Zhang, A. and Wan, Y. (2024) The air transport research society world conference: A data science- based literature review on the years 2014–2024. *Journal of the Air Transport Research Society*, 3(2024), 100041.

RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 37-38 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## ANALYSIS OF GROUND HANDLING RISKS THAT IMPACT AIRPLANE HEALTH MANAGEMENT

#### Rustam Togambayev

Transport and Telecommunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia st82122@tsi.lv

Keywords: Aviation safety, airplane health management, reason's model

Air transport is one of the most critical strategic components of a nation's transportation industry. Its speed and vast range of destinations make aviation an indispensable part of transportation logistics, where even minor errors can lead to large-scale catastrophes. Modern aviation requires robust aircraft health management (AHM) systems that monitor and address risks arising from internal and external factors. Ground handling, which includes refuelling, baggage handling, inspections and systems checks, remains a critical period when aircraft are vulnerable to operational and latent risks. Unaddressed ground handling risks can lead to cascading failures, operational delays, and even catastrophic accidents.

Ground handling risks are among the most significant contributors to aviation safety incidents, yet they are often underexplored. While organizations like NASA and EASA emphasize internal system safety, the interaction between ground operations and AHM remains insufficiently addressed. This research is timely, as the aviation industry seeks to leverage datadriven insights and advanced modelling techniques to improve safety and operational efficiency.

Reason's Model: Applied to classify latent failures and active errors in ground handling processes. Catastrophe Theory (René Thom): Used to model nonlinear transitions in system states, such as sudden breakdowns in operational safety. Domino Effect: Employed to study the sequential nature of failures within the ground handling system.

This study addresses the critical issue of improving ground handling processes and identifying associated risks and hazards to enhance operational safety across the entire aircraft lifecycle. Ground handling operations, carried out during an aircraft's downtime, often involve numerous hidden factors, which pose significant threats to aviation safety. Classifying these factors and establishing an ontology of potential risks are essential steps toward identifying and mitigating dynamic hazards:

a) Hidden factors and hazards that elude standard detection mechanisms.

- b) Lack of a unified framework to classify and prioritize ground handling risks.
- c) Limited integration of theoretical hazard models into AHM systems.

The research synthesizes findings from secondary data sources and theoretical models to provide a structured methodology for assessing ground handling risks. A comparative analysis of existing approaches highlights the need for integrating dynamic hazard models with AHM systems to ensure operational safety across the aircraft lifecycle.

This study lays the groundwork for proactive safety management in aviation by addressing gaps in ground handling safety. It proposes a structured risk classification framework and technological innovations to enhance hazard detection and mitigation. The findings contribute to the development of safer and more efficient aviation operations, aligning with the industry's goals of leveraging data-driven insights and advanced modelling techniques.

The research is supervised by St. emeritus sc., Dr.sc.ing., Dr. habil.sc.ing., Professor Igor Kabashkin and Dr.sc.ing., Professor Iyad Alomar.

#### References

- 1. Zeeman, E.C. (1976) Catastrophe theory. *Scientific American*, 234, 65-83. http://dx.doi.org/10.1038/scientificamerican0476-65.
- Kwatny, H., Dongmo, J.-E., Chang, B.Ch., Bajpai, G., Yasar, M. and Belcastro, Ch. (2023) *Aircraft accident prevention: Loss-of-control analysis.* NASA, Glenn Research Centre, USA. Available at https://doi.org/10.2514/6.2009-6256.
- IATA. (2022) From aircraft health monitoring to aircraft health management on AHM. Available at: https://www.iata.org/contentassets/fafa409c883d41198aeb87628c848851/ahm-wp-1sted-2022.pdf.
- 4. Shappell, S., Detwiler, C., Holcomb, K., Hackworth, C., Boquet, A., Wiegmann, D.A. (2007) Human error and commercial aviation accidents. an analysis using the human factors analysis and classification system. *Human Factors: The Journal of the Human Factors and Ergonomics Society*, 49(2). doi: 10.1518/001872007x312469.
- 5. Li, X., Romli, F. I., Azrad, S., & Md Zhahir, M. A. (2023). An overview of civil aviation accidents and risk analysis. In: *Proceedings of Aerospace Society Malaysia*, 1(1), 53–62. Retrieved from

https://www.aerosmalaysia.my/aeros\_proceedings/index.php/journal/article/view/24.

- 6. Lasek M, Sibilski K., Żurek J. (2010) Aviation accidents aetiology from catastrophe theory point of view. In: *Proceedings of International Congress of the Aeronautical Science 2010*. Available at: https://www.icas.org/ICAS\_ARCHIVE/ICAS2010/PAPERS/707.PDF.
- 7. Huang, M.H., Rust, R.T. (2017) Technology-driven service strategy. *Journal of the Academy of Marketing Science*, 45(6), 906-924.
- 8. Thom R. (1975) *Structural stability and morphogenesis: An outline of a general theory of models*. First English Edition, by W.A. Bejamin, Inc., Advanced Book Program, Reading, MA: Addison-Wesley.

RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 39-40 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## STRUCTURAL REFORMS AND BUSINESS PARTICIPATION IN GLOBAL VALUE CHAINS IN SUB-SAHARAN AFRICA

#### Etian Boress Kemgou Voptia

Transport and Telecommunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia bkemgou@gmail.com

Keywords: Participation in GVCs, global value chains, structural reforms

Studies have shown that companies participating in global value chains tend to enhance their competitiveness and productivity. Indeed, innovations in the transport and telecommunications sectors have led to a new organization of the productive system on a global scale. Firms that once produced solely in one country now increasingly import various inputs for their products, resulting in a vertical fragmentation of their production processes.

The World Bank (2010), in its post-crisis report from 2008, qualified global value chains (GVCs) as the backbone and central nerve of the world economy. This observation by the Bretton Woods institution is justified by the rapid development of GVCs since the 1990s. In 2014, the United Nations Commission on Trade and Development (UNCTAD) estimated that 60% of world trade—exceeding 20 trillion dollars—consisted of trade in intermediate goods and services integrated into the production of other goods and services intended for final consumption. Thus, GVCs provide companies and countries with greater benefits than traditional trade.

However, it should be noted that participation by companies in Sub-Saharan Africa has predominantly been downstream, meaning that the majority are confined to the export of raw materials. This limitation prevents them from fully capitalizing on the advantages associated with greater participation in GVCs (known as backward participation).

The primary goal of this research is to investigate the structural reforms necessary to enhance the participation of Sub-Saharan African businesses in Global Value Chains (GVCs), while integrating Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and sustainable business practices. The study will examine how these elements can be addressed through frameworks that emphasize stakeholder engagement, ethical sourcing, and sustainable supply chain practices. The study will focus on the object of inquiry concerning business participation in GVCs within Sub-Saharan Africa, and the subject will center on the interplay between structural reforms, CSR, and sustainability. To achieve this, the research will employ a mixed-methods approach, including thematic analysis of qualitative data collected from interviews and focus groups, as well as descriptive and inferential statistics from surveys and case studies of successful firms to identify barriers and best practices.

The specific objectives of this research are threefold, firstly to identify the existing structural reforms in Sub-Saharan Africa (regulatory frameworks, infrastructure development, and trade policies) and assess their effectiveness in promoting GVC participation. Secondly, exploring how Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and sustainable business practices can be integrated into the participation strategies of firms in GVCs by developing frameworks for ethical sourcing, stakeholder engagement, and sustainable production practices. Lastly, offering practical, actionable policy recommendations for governments and businesses aimed at overcoming barriers to GVC participation and enhancing the overall sustainability of global trade practices.

The structural reforms implemented in these countries aim to reduce the rigidities that prevent or hinder participation in GVCs; however, they do not seem to fully achieve this goal. Therefore, it is imperative to examine these reforms closely to understand their role in facilitating company participation in GVCs. The expected contributions of this research include providing actionable policy recommendations for enhancing GVC participation, contributing to the academic discourse on CSR and sustainability in the context of Sub-Saharan Africa, and offering practical strategies for businesses to navigate the complexities of global trade while promoting responsible practices.

Significant limitations of this research include challenges in data collection due to the difficulty in obtaining a representative sample of businesses across Sub-Saharan Africa, as well as the potential for response bias and subjectivity in qualitative interviews and surveys. The research may also face challenges related to the dynamic nature of GVCs and CSR practices, which may introduce subjectivity into the analysis. Lastly, while the study will propose actionable recommendations based on its findings, it is essential to recognize that implementing structural reforms and advancing CSR practices often involves complex political, economic, and social considerations. This underscores the importance of further research in this area to develop a more comprehensive understanding of the factors influencing GVC participation and sustainable business practices in Sub-Saharan Africa.

The research is supervised by Dr.sc.administr., Professor Yulia Stukalina.

RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 41-42 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## LEVERAGING BLOCKCHAIN TECHNOLOGY IN SUSTAINABLE MARKETING: A KPI-DRIVEN APPROACH

#### Chau Long Tran

Transport and Telecommunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia tranchaulong@yahoo.com

**Keywords:** Blockchain, marketing, key performance indicators (kpis), sustainability, sustainable marketing

Blockchain technology is transforming industries by introducing enhanced data transparency, security, and trustworthiness" (De Filippi *et al.*, 2020). However, sustainable marketing often struggles with tracking environmental and social impacts due to limited transparency (Park *et al.*, 2022). This thesis investigates blockchain's potential to bridge these gaps, developing a framework that uses KPIs to measure its impact on transparency, trust, and accountability in sustainable marketing.

While blockchain's application in various fields is well-studied, its role in sustainable marketing is less explored. Studies indicate that blockchain's immutable ledgers enhance trust by reliably tracking product origins and environmental impacts (Centobelli *et al.*, 2022; Prakash,2024; Böhmecke-Schwafer, 2024). Despite this potential, identifying suitable KPIs for evaluating sustainable initiatives remains a challenge, which this thesis addresses by proposing relevant KPI metrics linked to blockchain (Hristov and Chirico, 2019; Garg *et al.*, 2024).

The study integrates blockchain theories of transparency and trust with sustainability frameworks like the Triple Bottom Line, focusing on social, environmental, and economic outcomes. Using case studies and quantitative KPI analysis, the research explores how blockchain improves consumer trust, customer engagement, and carbon emission reductions in marketing, presenting a clear view of blockchain's sustainability role.

The results suggest that blockchain transforms sustainable marketing by offering secure, transparent data that fosters consumer trust. Nonetheless, high costs and regulatory barriers pose challenges. In conclusion, blockchain helps companies verify and share sustainability efforts, meeting consumer demands for transparency and addressing credibility gaps in traditional marketing. KPIs like carbon footprint and traceability offer measurable insights, validating blockchain's role in achieving sustainable marketing goals and reinforcing brands' commitment to responsible practices.

The research is supervised by Dr.soc.sc. Olegs Cernisevs.

- 1. Böhmecke-Schwafert, M. (2024) The role of blockchain for trade in global value chains: A systematic literature review and guidance for future research. *Telecomm Policy*, 48, 102835. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.TELPOL.2024.102835.
- Centobelli, P., Cerchione, R., Del Vecchio, P., Oropallo, E., Secundo, G. (2022) Blockchain technology for bridging trust, traceability and transparency in circular supply chain. *Information & Management*, 59, 103508. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.im.2021.103508.
- 3. Cuevas-Vargas, H., Del Rocío Esparza-Durón, M., González-Acolt, R. (2022) Sustainable marketing orientation and sustainability performance of Mexican small firms. The moderating role of firm age. *Procedia Comput Sci*, 214, 376–383. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.PROCS.2022.11.188.

- 4. De Filippi, P., Mannan, M., Reijers, W. (2020) Blockchain as a confidence machine: The problem of trust & amp; challenges of governance. *Technol Soc*, 62, 101284. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.techsoc.2020.101284.
- Garg, R., Chhikara, R., Agrawal, G., Rathi, R., Arya, Y. (2024) Sustainable marketing mix and supply chain integration: A systematic review and research agenda. *Sustainable Futures*, 8, 100269. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.SFTR.2024.100269.
- 6. Hristov, I., Chirico, A. (2019) The role of sustainability key performance indicators (KPIs) in implementing sustainable strategies. *Sustainability*, 11, 5742. https://doi.org/10.3390/su11205742.
- 7. Kemper, J. A., Ballantine, P.W. (2019) What do we mean by sustainability marketing? *Journal of Marketing Management*, 35, 277–309. https://doi.org/10.1080/0267257X.2019.1573845.
- 8. Park, J.Y., Perumal, S.V., Sanyal, S., Nguyen, B.A., Ray, S., Krishnan, R., Narasimhaiah, R., Thangam, D. (2022) Sustainable marketing strategies as an essential tool of business. *The American Journal of Economics and Sociology*, 81, 359–379. https://doi.org/10.1111/ajes.12459.
- 9. Prakash, A. (2024) Blockchain technology for supply chain management: Enhancing transparency and efficiency. *International Journal for Global Academic & Scientific Research*, 3, 01–11. https://doi.org/10.55938/ijgasr.v3i2.73.
- Wu, T., Rocha, J.C., Berry, K., Chaigneau, T., Hamann, M., Lindkvist, E., Qiu, J., Schill, C., Shepon, A., Crépin, A.-S., Folke, C. (2024) Triple bottom line or trilemma? Global tradeoffs between prosperity, inequality, and the environment. *World Dev*, 178, 106595. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.WORLDDEV.2024.106595.

RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 43-44 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## CONNECTEDNESS IN EUROPEAN FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS: A DIGITAL PERSPECTIVE

#### Mehemmed Maharramov

Transport and Telecommunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia st88321@students.tsi.lv

Keywords: Spillover index, systemic risk, portfolio compression, digital assets

In highly assimilated markets, where homogenous firms dominate, disturbances in one firm spread at a fast pace and often undermine the risk management efforts. The Global Financial Crisis of 2008 highlighted such spillover effects, the critical need to quantify systemic risk and explore ways to monitor and mitigate it. The rise of digital and asset-specific innovations exacerbates the assessment of systemic risk levels. Existing EU regulations fail to grasp the impact of digitalization on the banking sector and thus, are technologically neutral (Buch, 2024). Moreover, Europe is in a time of weak growth and increasing debts of EU countries raises alarm over a probable crisis (European Central Bank, 2024).

This study's goal is to investigate how European financial institutions' interconnectedness can be used to assess and mitigate systemic risk. The research addresses probable vulnerabilities exacerbated by digital innovations and portfolio compression.

The object of the study is the systemic risk and financial stability in Europe.

The subject of the research is the impact of digital innovations and portfolio compression on European financial institutions' systemic risk.

The study employs the Spillover Index (Diebold and Yilmaz, 2009, 2012) and the Dynamic-Conditional-Correlation model (Engle, 2002) to analyze financial institution interconnectedness and systemic risk. It critiques previous methods like Cholesky orthogonalization and Generalized Forecast Error Variance Decomposition (GFEVD), advocating the square root matrix orthogonalization (SQRTM) as a superior approach. The superiority of SQRTM is proved by the results of the study being order-invariant and keeping the Spillover Index formulation intact – as in the original paper of Diebold and Yilmaz.

At its core, the research data consists of the stock price return and price volatility history of the European financial institutions under study. The stock and digital assets data are collected via web scraping Google and Yahoo Finance, as well as, from comprehensive financial analysis and trading software such as EIKON. The compression-related data is aimed at being collected via European Clearinghouses or third-party service providers.

The tasks of the study include:

- Exploring the differences between Cholesky-based and SQRTM-based Spillover Indices amongst European financial institutions by showing their mathematical and practical differences
- Analyzing the effects of digital assets on the systemic risk
- Mathematical examination of the portfolio compression and its simulated application onto the available financial institutions
- Incorporating the results into the Spillover Index and investigating the impact of portfolio compression on the systemic risk
- Consolidating the results to develop a strategy for the regulators to help in the fight against the systemic risk

The output of the study will be an accurate, reliable, and a comprehensive systemic risk quantification framework capable of addressing long-term dynamics and considering the

evolution of the financial landscape. The findings will have important implications for policymakers and regulators seeking to mitigate systemic risk and promote a more resilient financial system in the era of digitalization.

The research is supervised by Dr.oec., Professor Jelena Popova.

- 1. Buch, C. (2024) *Digital Finance: Does it change the trade-off between risk and resilience?* [Speech]. European Central Bank. Retrieved from: https://www.bankingsupervision.europa.eu/press/speeches/date/2024/html/ssm.sp24032 2~7bbfe50962.en.html.
- 2. Diebold, F. X., Yılmaz, K. (2009) Measuring financial asset return and volatility spillovers, with application to global equity markets. *The Economic Journal*, 119 (534), 158–171. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1468-0297.2008.02208.x.
- 3. Diebold, F. X., Yılmaz, K. (2012) Better to give than to receive: Predictive directional measurement of volatility spillovers. *International Journal of Forecasting*, 28 (1), 57–66. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijforecast.2011.02.006.
- 4. Engle, R. (2002) Dynamic conditional correlation: A simple class of multivariate generalized autoregressive conditional heteroskedasticity models. *Journal of business & economic statistics*, 20(3), 339-350. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1198/073500102288618487.
- 5. European Central Bank. (2024) Financial Stability Review. https://www.ecb.europa.eu/press/financial-stability publications/fsr/html/ecb.fsr202411~dd60fc02c3.en.html.

RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 45-46 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## DEVELOPING A CORPORATE-CENTRIC MODEL FOR INFLUENCER MARKETING: STRATEGIES FOR ENHANCING BRAND IMAGE

#### Akarsh Surendran

Transport and Telecommunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia imakarshs@gmail.com

**Keywords**: Corporate-centric model, influencer marketing, brand image enhancement, brand-influencer alignment, consumer perception

The structural model of influencer marketing is a planned approach where brands should use influencers to share the brand's values and culture making consumers develop a proper emotional connection (Wu, 2024). However, this approach is also not without its challenges – principally that there is a risk of developing a negative brand connection when partnering with influencers. The fact is that the efficiency of influencer marketing depends on choosing the right influencers for the brand that share the same values, target audience, engagement rate, are nonfake and have the same content approach as brand's one (Kailash, 2024). This corporate-centric model must therefore handle these complexities through strategic planning, constant monitoring and selection of the correct influencers to correspond to brand value so as to enhance a pleasant corporate image and edge in the market (Kryl et al., 2023). The risks of influencer promotions and advertisements includes brand suitability, consumers' disconnection, and branding that may negatively relate to the product or service, quality degradation as a result of oversaturation of the item and commercialization. Furthermore, concerning the effective functioning of influencer marketing: content selection, community participation, and other factors, knowledge about them can greatly help in achieving the desired brand performance (Bansal and Bhati, 2022). Also, brands should focus on relevancy as it helps create better engagement with clients and thus building the trust essential for influencer marketing (Zhou, 2023). Finally, therefore, there is the need to understand well the target market and the requisite marketing goals, which will help in identifying the right influencer for an improvement of the brand image and engagement (Wang and Chan-Olmsted, 2024). The research question focuses on developing a new corporate model for influencer marketing to optimize brand equity and capture perceived truthfulness and nearness, potentially changing consumer behaviour.

This research aims to create a corporate-centric model for influencer marketing that uses innovative methods to boost brand influence and consumer engagement. It focuses on classic challenges by data and digital instruments and presents the conceptual approach to working with influencers. This is to ensure that the ultimate customers are retained for an extended period, and the revenues are optimised while the branding is done effectively.

For that purpose, an exploratory sequential mixed-methods design is employed where the first phase of data collection is qualitative with the help of structured interviews. The quantitative phase includes using surveys and factor analysis to reconfirm the generated qualitative themes and make them quantitative. To analyze survey data in the study, the author performs factor analysis in SPSS 29 to determine clusters and understand the underlying constructs of influencer marketing. Analyzing the results, the corporate-centric influencer model is created, and employing the Analytic Hierarchy Process (AHP) to prioritize factors by the expert interview data. The research employs questionnaires and structured interviews to study influencers' marketing factors. The outcomes from factor analysis and AHP enable a model to be established to assist in enhancing brand influencer relations and to gain better understanding

of the influencing factors. Structured interviews and surveys bring limitations like response bias and selection bias where respondent's remarks may not be very diversified and may be in favor of the specific type of answers.

This research develops a corporative-centric influencer marketing model, with the aim of developing an approach to identify individuals to tag for company achievement based on factors that boost brand image. In terms of external validation, it is going to be verified by subject matter experts as part of the practical application of the proposed corporate-centric model. This evaluation will involve getting information and suggestions from marketing practitioners, brand managers and social media specialists such that the model could be improved to suit real-life demand and constraints.

The practical implication of the final corporate-centric model is that it prescribes what brand and influencer relation strategies should look like depending on how they build measurable goals, contracts, analytics and long-term strategies. All these steps will help increase the performance and usability of influencer marketing for brands.

The research is supervised by Dr.sc.ing., Assistant Professor Olga Zervina.

- 1. Bansal, M.,Bhati, N. (2022) Influencer marketing: Its antecedents and behavioural outcomes. In: *Digital Marketing Outreach*. Routledge India.
- Kailash, M.S.R. (2024) Social influence strategies: Unveiling the dynamics of influencer marketing in modern communication. *Shanlax International Journal of Management*, 11(iS1-Jan), 48–54. DOI: 10.34293/management.v11iiS1-Jan.7139.
- 3. Kryl, E., Brychkova, E. and Zhiltsova, O. (2023). Factors of influence on brand image when interacting with influencers. *Russian Journal of Resources, Conservation and Recycling*, [online] 10(1). DOI: 10.15862/35ECOR123.
- 4. Wang, R. and Chan-Olmsted, S. (2024) Brand communication through social media influencers: Trust building and trust transfer mechanisms. *International Journal of Business Communication*, 23294884241255911. DOI: 10.1177/23294884241255911.
- 5. Wu, Z. (2024) Corporate marketing and innovation strategies based on brand management. *Transactions on Economics, Business and Management Research*, 8, 53–58. https://doi.org/10.62051/834kq551.
- 6. Zhou, Y. (2023) Branding in the digital age: How influencers marketing and authenticity reshape brand perceptions. *Highlights in Business, Economics and Management*, 23, 1053–1059. DOI: 10.54097/8abykp18.

RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 47-48 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## MANAGING OF OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCY AND REDUCING OF AIRCRAFT DOWNTIME BY OPTIMIZATION OF AIRCRAFT ON GROUND PROCESSES FOR AIROPERATOR

#### Diallo Nikita Cheick Abraham

Transport and Telecommunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia. diallo.abraham2019@gmail.com

Keywords: Airlines, spare parts, competitiveness, forecasting models, data analysis, aircraft on ground

This research aims to establish a strategic framework designed to improve operational efficiency and minimize aircraft downtime for an Air Operator by optimizing Aircraft on Ground (AOG) processes. By leveraging advanced forecasting models to accurately predict spare parts requirements and implementing predictive maintenance techniques. This study focuses on enhancing AOG processes across supply chain, logistics and engineering departments. This framework is to enable an airline to reduce its AOG incidents and maintain seamless, cost-effective operations while bolstering fleet reliability and minimizing unplanned disruptions.

#### The main research question is:

Will the introduction of a reliable forecasting model influence the procedures and management of operational efficiencies, as well as the overall performance of airline?

#### The research tasks are:

- To analyze the current distribution of AOG/Critical shipments versus Routine/Road shipments in the aviation logistic department.
- To identify factors contributing to the prevalence of AOG events, including supply chain inefficiencies, inventory management challenges, and logistical constraints.
- To investigate the impact of AOG shipments on operational costs, fleet availability, and customer's satisfaction within the aviation industry.
- To examine the role of troubleshooting procedures and manuals used in SmartLynx compared to other airline companies.
- To develop predictive algorithms using historical data to forecast AOG occurrences and optimize shipment allocation and scheduling, an example of the Bootstrap and Econometric analysis approach.
- To implement, evaluate and compare reliable forecasting models for an airline to ensure timely parts distribution and mitigate Aircraft on Ground (AOG) events.

The research subject is the assessment of forecasting model in the management of Supply Chain and Logistic processes. The research object is Supply Chain, Logistic department and engineering department of airline. The research base is SmartLynx airlines.

The research has begun with a comprehensive overview literature study of the traditional framework of AOG models and types in aviation. The research evaluates three primary forecasting models such as Linear Regression, Econometric Analysis, and the Bootstrap Method assessing their effectiveness in predicting spare parts demand and managing unexpected maintenance requirements. Each model's predictive accuracy is analyzed to determine the best fit for minimizing Mean Time Between Failures (MTBF), thereby reducing AOG-related downtime. Quantitative analysis of 2020-2024 data focuses on MTBF, spare part usage, and supply chain metrics, while qualitative insights are gained through interviews with industry experts.

The author's research reveals how varied aircraft models complicate inventory management and the operational disruptions and costs that AOG incidents can impose due to

unforeseen technical issues grounding aircraft. The research's findings indicate that Linear Regression is suitable for stable demand patterns, Econometric Analysis is effective for demand influenced by economic conditions, and the Bootstrap Method accommodates irregular demand. Therefore, with the hybrid model recommended, the focus is here to combining these forecasting techniques with real-time data integration to streamline inventory processes and reduce AOG incidents.

#### The research is supervised by Dr.sc.ing., Professor Iyad Alomar.

- 1. Ahmad, T., Madonski, R., Zhang, D., Huang, C. and Mujeeb, A. (2022) Data-driven probabilistic machine learning in sustainable smart energy/smart energy systems: Key developments, challenges, and future research opportunities in the context of smart grid paradigm. *Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews*, 160, 11, 21, 28.
- 2. Athanasopoulos, G., Hyndman, R.J., Kourentzes, N. and Panagiotelis, A. (2023) Forecast reconciliation: A review. *International Journal of Forecasting*.
- 3. Banerjee, N., Morton, A. and Akartunalı, K. (2020) Passenger demand forecasting in scheduled transportation. *European Journal of Operational Research*, 286(3), 797-810.
- 4. Berkcan, O. and Aksoy, T. (2022) Assessing the effect of proactive maintenance scheduling on maintenance costs and airline profitability: The case of Turkish Airlines Technic. *International Journal of Research in Business and Social Science* (2147-4478), 11(4), 213-238.
- 5. Boeing (2023) *Predictive Maintenance for Next-Gen Aircraft*. Available at: https://www.boeing.com/commercial/aeromagazine/articles/2017\_q2/6/.
- 6. McKinsey & Company (2023) *Global Aviation Growth Forecast*. Available at: https://www.mckinsey.com/industries/travel-logistics-and-infrastructure/our-insights/aviation.

RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 49-50 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## ASSESSMENT OF INVESTMENT ATTRACTIVENESS OF EASYJET COMPANY

#### Waqar Ullah

Transportation and Telecommunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV 10-19, Latvia waqarullah45@gmail.com

Keywords: Airline industry, investment attractiveness, financial performance analysis, EasyJet

Before investing in any project, it is very necessary to analyze its risk, return, and value. Investors invest in only those projects that show high returns at lower risk. Investment attractiveness analysis helped the investors to analyze the investment before investing in a project (Gutkevych, 2019). Aim of the research is to assess the investment attractiveness of EasyJet Company which is one of the low cost British Airline group. For the analysis of the investment attractiveness of the airline industry, financial ratios will be used. Technological advancement, regulatory environments, changing consumer preferences, and fluctuating fuel prices are factors that significantly affect the airline industry (Samunderu *et al.*, 2023). Valuable insights about industry-specific challenges and macroeconomic trends that impact investment decisions will be provided by analyzing EasyJet's position within this volatile environment. There is a unique set of challenges faced by EasyJet. That's why, it is interesting to assess the investment attractiveness of EasyJet. EasyJet has strong brand loyalty in the European airline market.

Investment attractiveness is significantly affected by investment programs. Toward specific projects, capital and resources are allocated by an organization and the government through a strategic plan called an investment program (Kachalov *et al.*, 2023). At a competitive price, goods are manufactured by a company when an organization has high production potential. Investors are attracted to that organizations produce maximum output with available resources (Sala *et al.*, 2023). In providing a legal framework, tax policies, and clear regulations government plays an important role in investment attractiveness. International Investors invest in those county's projects where there is no corruption and political instability (Gao *et al.*, 2024). This study will provide insight into the different factors which affect the investment attractiveness of the airline industry.

Profitability ratios are used for the assessment of investment attractiveness. Return on equity, return on asset, net profit margin and gross profit margin are the different profitability ratios used for assessment of investment attractiveness. Company growth prospects and sustainability are evaluated through profitability ratios. Investors prefer to invest in those projects which provide long-term value. A company's strategic potential, operational efficiency, and financial success are determined through profitability ratios (Makhazhanova *et al.*, 2023).

They are the low financial risks faced by the companies which have a strong liquidation ratio. During a period of reduced cash flow and high liquidity ratios companies can continue their operations without any interruption. Company borrowing capacity is also enhanced with stable liquidity. The cost of capital decreased with the strong liquidity position of the company. The low cost of borrowing increased the profitability of a company and investment attracted that company's investment. Those investors who are looking toward financial stability and risk management used liquidity ratios for analysis of investment attractiveness (Klymenko *et al.*, 2023).

The scientific novelty of the current study lies in its comprehensive approach to assessing the investment attractiveness of EasyJet by analyzing factors that influence this metric both internally and externally. Investment attractiveness is a multifaceted concept shaped by various elements, and while most existing studies focus primarily on profitability ratios, this research incorporates a broader range of financial indicators. Specifically, it evaluates profitability, liquidity, and efficiency ratios to provide a holistic view of EasyJet's investment appeal. This methodological approach ensures a detailed analysis and offers new insights compared to prior studies that predominantly emphasize profitability as the sole determinant.

The research is supervised by Dr. oec., Professor Irina Kuzmina-Merlino.

- 1. Gao, H., Chen, F., & Ouyang, Y. (2024) The impacts of political uncertainty on public financing costs: evidence from anti-corruption investigations in China. *Public Choice*, 198(1), 69-91.
- 2. Gutkevych, S. (2019) Investment attractiveness of industries: features and trends. *Baltic Journal of Economic Studies*, 5(3), 50-58.
- 3. Kachalov, D., & Finogenova, Y. (2023) Enhancing investment attractiveness through ESG ratings: A sustainable development perspective in the banking, electric utilities and IPP industries. *Journal of Law and Sustainable Development*, 11(1), e0258-e0258.
- 4. Klymenko, N., Voronenko, I., Nehrey, M., Rogoza, K., & Rogoza, N. (2023) Risk assessment of shock periods and investment attractiveness of agroholdings of Ukraine. *Agricultural and Resource Economics: International Scientific E-Journal*, 9(2), 163-182.
- 5. Makhazhanova, U., Omurtayeva, A., Kerimkhulle, S., Tokhmetov, A., Adalbek, A., & Taberkhan, R. (2023) Assessment of investment attractiveness of small enterprises in agriculture based on fuzzy logic. In: *Proceedings of the Computational Methods in Systems and Software*, 411-419. Cham: Springer Nature Switzerland.
- 6. Sala, D., Bashynska, I., Pavlova, O., Pavlov, K., Chorna, N., & Chornyi, R. (2023) Investment and innovation activity of renewable energy sources in the electric power industry in the south-eastern region of Ukraine. *Energies*, 16(5), 2363.
- 7. Samunderu, E., Perret, J. K., & Geller, G. (2023) The economic value rationale of fuel hedging: An empirical perspective from the global airline industry. *Journal of Air Transport Management*, 106, 102324.

RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 51-52 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (SMS) IMPLEMENTATION IN SMALL-SIZED AVIATION COMPANY

#### Viktorija Fahrutdinova

Transport and Telecommunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV 1019, Latvia viktorija.fahrutdinova@gmail.com

**Keywords:** Safety management system, aviation safety, hazard analysis, operational challenges, regulatory compliance

The integration of Safety Management Systems (SMS) is a cornerstone of aviation safety, aiming to enhance risk mitigation and ensure regulatory compliance, particularly in small-sized aviation companies facing operational and resource constraints. Despite their critical role, small-scale aviation organizations are often overlooked in academic research, which predominantly focuses on larger enterprises. This study investigates SMS implementation challenges, hazard identification processes, and operational enhancements in smaller companies, offering actionable insights that bridge this gap (ICAO, 2018; EASA, 2021).

The research employs a mixed-method approach, combining qualitative and quantitative techniques to ensure a comprehensive analysis. Qualitative interviews with management provide in-depth insights into the organizational perception of SMS, identifying challenges and opportunities for improvement. Quantitative surveys among operational staff allow for the collection of measurable data, revealing trends and patterns in safety practices and compliance levels. Together, these methods collect primary data directly from stakeholders, ensuring a robust analysis tailored to the unique characteristics of small aviation companies. Secondary data, including regulatory frameworks and industry reports, supplement this analysis by providing context and benchmarks for comparison (Stolzer *et. al.*, 2008; Reason, 1997).

The findings are analyzed through the lens of global aviation safety frameworks, including ICAO and EASA standards. Preliminary results indicate that while small aviation companies demonstrate a commitment to safety, they face significant barriers, such as limited resources, inconsistent training, and stakeholder engagement. This research proposes targeted strategies for overcoming these challenges, focusing on cultivating a proactive safety culture, continuous improvement, and regulatory adherence. By emphasizing practical solutions, the study offers a framework for enhancing SMS practices in resource-constrained environments, contributing to both academic discourse and industry practice (Mitchell and Braithwaite, 2013).

This research advances the understanding of SMS implementation in small aviation companies, providing evidence-based recommendations for fostering robust safety protocols. Its outcomes aim to benefit both academic and professional audiences, offering scalable strategies applicable across similar organizations globally.

The research is supervised by Dr.sc. administr., Professor Yulia Stukalina.

- 1. EASA (European Union Aviation Safety Agency). (2021) Annual Safety Review 2021. Cologne: EASA.
- 2. ICAO (International Civil Aviation Organization). (2018) Safety Management Manual (SMM), 4th Edition. Montreal: ICAO.
- 3. Mitchell, J. and Braithwaite, G. (2013) The key drivers of safety performance in small aviation operations. *Safety Science*, 57, 36-47.

- 4. Reason, J. (1997) *Managing the Risks of Organizational Accidents*. Aldershot, UK: Ashgate Publishing.
- 5. Stolzer, A.J., Halford, C.D., and Goglia, J.J. (2008) *Safety Management Systems in Aviation*. Aldershot, UK: Ashgate Publishing.

RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 53-54 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## INTEGRATION OF ROBOTIC TECHNOLOGIES INTO PHARMACEUTICAL SERVICES IN LATVIA: CHALLENGES AND OPPORTUNITIES BASED ON EUROPEAN EXPERIENCE

#### Anna Manakova

Transport and Telecommunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia st80780@students.tsi.lv

**Keywords:** Pharmaceutical services, labor market, technology development, investments in robotization, quality of service

The relevance of the study lies in the fact that accelerated development of technologies in the medical and pharmaceutical industries has already proved its effectiveness in improving the quality of service, optimizing processes and reducing risks. Leading countries of the world, including the European Union states, are actively using robotic systems in pharmacies and hospitals. This makes it possible to significantly reduce human errors, increase the speed and accuracy of dispensing medicines, and relieve staff from routine tasks. Latvia, being on the path of digital transformation, has all the prerequisites for the application of these technologies, which is relevant in the context of growing requirements to the quality of medical services and the need to improve their accessibility.

The aim of the study is to identify opportunities and challenges in the integration of robotic technologies into pharmaceutical services in Latvia, taking into account the experience of the European Union countries. Based on the obtained data, recommendations will be developed for decision makers aimed at optimal implementation of robotic technologies, which will improve the quality, accessibility and economic feasibility of pharmaceutical services in the country.

To achieve the objective, multiple linear regression will be constructed to show the dependence of the quality of services provided on multiple factors, including investments in robotization.

The introduction of robotic technologies into pharmaceutical services in Latvia will open new opportunities for the development of the industry and improvement of the quality of medical services. Modern technologies can not only increase efficiency, but also help increase patients' trust in pharmaceutical institutions, especially if they are assured of the accuracy and safety of the services provided.

In Switzerland, for example, SwissLog Healthcare has developed robotic systems used for inventory management in pharmacies and other healthcare facilities, as well as for automated prescription dispensing. One example is the TransCar, which is an automated guided vehicle that delivers medicines between hospital departments and pharmacies. (Otsaw, 2024)

Likewise, in Germany, BD Rowa has developed robotic systems that can store, recognize and dispense various medications upon incoming request. This technology is widely used not only in Germany, but also in medical institutions in Spain and Belgium. As well as in other European countries. (BD Rowa, 2024)

The most promising areas of development include the use of robotic systems for inventory management, automated medication distribution and prescription dispensing, and the introduction of automated self-service terminals in pharmacies. All this can significantly improve access to medicines and reduce the workload of staff.

The experience of European Union countries shows that the integration of robotic technologies can be successful if a number of conditions are met: availability of targeted funding;

development of training and retraining programs; support from the state and adaptation of legislative norms.

The research is supervised by Mg.oec. Oksana Skorobogatova.

- 1. Otsaw. (2024) The World of OTSAW Swisslog Healthcare Robotics. Available at: https://otsaw-swisslog.com/
- 2. BD Rowa. (2024) Automation means more freedom. Available at: https://rowa.de/en/industries/pharmacy/

RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 55 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## ADAPTIVE COMMUNICATION MODELS - SOLUTIONS FRAMING THE FUTURE OF MARKETING

#### Nikole Hristolubova

Transport and Telecommunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia st81190@students.tsi.lv

Keywords: Marketing, adaptive communication models, consumer, collaboration, future trends

The relevance of the research is dictated by the fact that marketing, in a rapidly transforming digital world, requires new approaches to consumer communication. Adaptive communication models represent innovative solutions that can not only increase the effectiveness of companies' interaction with their audience but also anticipate changes in consumer behavior.

Adaptive communication models are strategies of consumer interaction based on flexible changes in approaches to content and communication channels according to audience behavior, preferences, and needs data. Such models are enabled by technological developments, including artificial intelligence, machine learning, and big data analytics (Dib, 2024).

The research aims to develop recommendations for implementing adaptive communication models in companies' marketing strategies to enhance their competitiveness. The study will also seek to determine how adaptive approaches can improve audience engagement and strengthen brand loyalty. Special attention will be paid to identifying the advantages and limitations of such models, as well as assessing their role in shaping future marketing trends.

Through personalization and a deeper understanding of customer needs, adaptive communication models contribute to building long-term relationships between brand and consumer (Phillips & Barry, 2024).

With advancements in artificial intelligence, adaptive models will become even more accurate and flexible. In the future, marketers will be able to predict consumer needs with greater precision and create truly "smart" campaigns tailored to the individual consumer.

In the context of the growing importance of personalization and changes in consumer behavior, companies that effectively adapt their communication strategies to audience needs will gain significant competitive advantages.

The research is supervised by Mg.oec. Oksana Skorobogatova.

- 1. Dib, A., (2024) *Lean Marketing: More leads. More profit. Less marketing.* Page Two; Unabridged edition. 236 p.
- 2. Phillips, S., Barry, R., Gans, S., (2024) *The Consumer Insights Revolution: Transforming market research for competitive advantage*. Rethink Press. 208 p.

RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 56-57 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## INNOVATION HUBS AS CATALYSTS FOR CONSUMER BEHAVIOR TRANSFORMATION: A MARKETING PERSPECTIVE

#### Anandhu Vijayakumar

Turiba University Graudu 68, Riga, LV-1058, Latvia anandhuvijayakumarhere@gmail.com

**Keywords**: Apparel industry, consumer buying behaviour, factor analysis, innovation hubs, marketing strategy

The apparel industry is transforming, making stylish clothes more accessible to all, thereby increasing profitability and accessibility (Chauhan *et.al.*, 2023). Textile companies use marketing strategies to influence customer perceptions, while the apparel industry uses online strategies to highlight unique features that set them apart from competitors. The other psychological and demographic factors also influence the customers while purchasing the clothes (Nanda *et. al.*, 2024). The traditional marketing methodologies sometimes fail to increase the consumer spending on the clothes. The innovative marketing strategies developed through innovation hubs attract the customers, thrive the competition and increment the revenues (Gazzola *et. al.*, 2020). This also influence the decision-making of the customers as well as combine both the traditional and modern approaches in apparel industry. Many of the written literatures lack the updated knowledge regarding the factors affecting the consumer purchasing intention through innovation hubs. This is the identified research gap by the authors.

Innovation hubs collaborate technological advancements in the apparel industry. Innovation hub is a powerful tool to influence the consumer behaviour through the implementation of innovative marketing initiatives (Chenoy *et. al.*, 2019). As India is one of the largest apparel industries in world (Ganbold, 2024), the novelty of this paper is that, by collaborating the data deduced through data analytic marketing, psychology of the consumer as well as innovation, the paper presents a detailed understanding of how innovation hubs improve the customer purchasing rates which is very important in this present apparel market scenario.

The aim of this research is to explore and analyse how innovation hubs can serve as powerful catalysts for transforming consumer behaviour in the apparel industry of India, with a focus on developing effective marketing strategies. The authors developed mainly two research questions which is given below.

RQ1: What is the role of innovation hubs in Indian apparel industry?

RQ2: What are the factors influencing consumer buying behaviour in apparel industry through innovation hubs?

The tasks of the research are as follows:

- 1. To perform a review existing literature on innovation hubs, consumer behaviour, and marketing strategies in the apparel industry identify gaps in current literature on the role of innovation hubs in fostering industry transformations.
- 2. To investigate the function and structure of existing innovation hubs in the apparel sector and examine how these hubs contribute to ideation, technology development, and marketing innovation.
- 3. To conduct an online survey with consumers to gather insights on their behavior, preferences, and perceptions of brands associated with innovation hubs.

- 4. To perform a factor analysis in the data gathered and to Propose a framework outlines best practices for leveraging innovation hubs to influence consumer behavior in the apparel industry.
- 5. To provide strategic recommendations for apparel brands to leverage innovation hubs effectively.

Through a structured framework and data collection via online questionnaires, the study analyses the relationship between these innovation hubs and consumer behaviour. This study uses a quantitative method, conducting a digital survey with 153 participants, mainly employees of small-scale textile companies and B2B consumers. The data is analysed using SPSS 29 software and identified major factors for enhancing customer buying behaviour through innovation hubs. The most significant factors are engagement (32.902%), green factors (15.388%), retail factors (9.573%), and interaction factors (8.275%). The survey is conducted in southern India due to geographical limitations and the challenge of finding experts with relevant insights. The findings offer actionable recommendations for apparel brands to enhance engagement and sustainability, ultimately providing valuable insights into the role of innovation hubs in transforming consumer behaviour within the sector. The research can be rigorously validated to ensure relevance to current industry trends.

The research is supervised by Dr.oec., Professor Jelena Davidova.

- Chauhan, S., Banerjee, R., & Dagar, V. (2023) Analysis of Impulse Buying Behaviour of Consumer During COVID-19: An Empirical Study. *Millennial Asia*, 14(2), 278–299. DOI: 10.1177/09763996211041215.
- 2. Chenoy, D., Ghosh, S. M., & Shukla, S. K. (2019) Skill development for accelerating the manufacturing sector: the role of 'new age' skills for 'Make in India.' *International Journal of Training Research*, 17(1), 112–130. DOI: 10.1080/14480220.2019.1639294.
- 3. Ganbold, S. (2024) *Apparel market in the Asia-Pacific region statistics & facts*. Statista. https://www.statista.com/topics/10690/apparel-market-in-the-asia-pacific-region/#topicOverview.
- 4. Gazzola, P., Pavione, E., Pezzetti, R., & Grechi, D. (2020) Trends in the fashion industry. The perception of sustainability and circular economy: A gender/generation quantitative approach. *Sustainability*, 12(7), 2809. DOI: 10.3390/su12072809.
- 5. Nanda, Y., Bhatt, C. D., Jayant, J., & Semwal, A. (2024) Factors Affecting Buying Behavior Towards Apparels: A Study on the City of Dehradun. *Journal of Informatics Education and Research*, 4(2), 2553–2562.

# **Session 4**

# Modern Technologies of Education

Mūsdienu izglītības tehnoloģijas RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 60-61 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE AND NEW THINKING COMPETENCES FOR UNIVERSITY STUDENTS

#### **Boriss Misnevs**

Transport and Telecommunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia Misnevs.B@tsi.lv

**Keywords:** Critical thinking, computational thinking, calculational thinking, mediation thinking, digital competences, education curriculum

The holistic goal of university education today is to develop well-rounded individuals equipped with critical thinking skills, ethical values, interdisciplinary knowledge, and the ability to adapt to an evolving global society. This broad aim addresses both personal growth and societal needs, emphasizing the importance of preparing students for the complexities of modern life and work (Kabashkin, 2023).

This process should be considered natural and timely, however, due to several reasons, the development of thinking of students in high-tech specialties requires the expansion and deepening of cognitive knowledge of these students. In this study, the author highlighted other types of thinking that complement Critical Thinking and require special attention from teachers. Let us consider three of them Computational Thinking (popularized by computer scientist Jeanette Wing (2006)), Calculative Thinking, and Meditative Thinking as described by Martin Heidegger (1986).

For a better understanding of the educational task, we will define these types of thinking:

• **Computational Thinking** is primarily a practical, problem-solving framework used in computer science and applicable across various fields.

• **Calculative Thinking**, according to Heidegger, is a broader philosophical concept focused on planning, organizing, and calculating actions to achieve learning goals or outcomes.

• **Meditative Thinking**, a concept developed by Martin Heidegger in his book "Discourse on Thinking", refers to a contemplative, reflective mode of thought that is openended, patient, and oriented toward understanding rather than controlling or calculating.

Computational thinking, as a concept, popularized by computer scientist Jeanette Wing (2006), isn't about programming per se, but rather about applying techniques and principles from computer science to solve problems across disciplines. Computational thinking is a problem-solving approach that involves breaking down complex problems, analyzing and organizing data, and designing solutions that a computer (or a human) can carry out effectively.

Calculative thinking is a pragmatic, goal-oriented way of processing information. It involves planning, organizing, and calculating ways to achieve certain ends, like problem-solving in science, technology, and business. Heidegger argues that calculative thinking has become the primary mode of thought in modern society, especially under the influence of technology, and that it leads us to treat everything — including nature and human beings — as resources to be optimized or exploited.

In contrast, Meditative thinking is a more contemplative, open-ended form of thought. It does not seek to control or manipulate, but rather to engage with and understand the essence of things in a receptive and non-intrusive way. Heidegger believes meditative thinking allows individuals to connect more deeply with their own existence, the world, and the fundamental mysteries of life.

The authors provide practical examples of the use of all three types of thinking in the educational process with the aim of including them in the corresponding lesson plans.

Particular attention is paid to Meditative Thinking, which is not very common in the educational process of technical universities. It is proposed to make wider use of the following types of student learning activities supported by the university academic staff:

- 1. Reflective Pause.
- 2. Questioning the "Why" Behind Knowledge.
- 3. Listening with Openness.
- 4. Contemplative Journaling.
- 5. Observation of Thought Patterns.
- 6. Embracing Uncertainty.
- 7. Mindful Walking or Silent Sitting.
- 8. Exploring Connections Beyond the Subject Matter etc.

To solve all the listed problems, the authors propose intensive use of AI services, particularly LLMs models (ChaptGPT, Claude, etc.). AI models can provide unique forms of guidance, exploration, and stimulation that go beyond traditional learning methods (Marvin, 2024). It can be done by the following:

- 1. Supporting Computational Thinking
  - Breaking Down Problems.
  - Pattern Recognition.
  - Building Algorithmic Thinking.
- 2. Enhancing Calculative Thinking
  - Providing Efficiency and Precision.
  - Simulating Scenarios.
  - Quantitative Data Analysis
- 3. Fostering Meditative Thinking.
  - Promoting Reflective Dialogue.
  - Encouraging Open-Ended Exploration.
  - Creating Space for Non-Linear Thought.
  - Journaling and Reflection Prompts.

In conclusion, it is necessary to emphasize the dual role of AI in the university. On the one hand, AI services relieve students from the need to remember many technical or technological details of various processes (the question of "how"), on the other hand, AI services require a new level of abstract thinking to implement innovative solutions using new digital technologies (the questions of "what" and "why"). This fact requires a revision of specific learning objectives in higher education programs (learning outcomes) to create new opportunities for developing special types of thinking required in the modern information society (Misnevs, 2023).

- 1. Heidegger, M. (1986) *Discourse on Thinking, Harper & Row*, 1966. https://archive.org/details/discourseonthink00heid/page/n5/mode/2up.
- 2. Kabashkin, I., Misnevs, B. and Puptsau, A. (2023) Transformation of the university in the age of artificial intelligence: Models and competences. *Transport and Telecommunication*, 24(3), 2023, 209–216.
- Marvin, G., Hellen, N., Jjingo, D., Nakatumba-Nabende, J. (2024) Prompt engineering in large language models. In: Jacob, I.J., Piramuthu, S., Falkowski-Gilski, P. (eds) *Data Intelligence and Cognitive Informatics. ICDICI 2023. Algorithms for Intelligent Systems.* Springer, Singapore. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-99-7962-2\_30.
- 4. Misnevs, B. and Kabashkin, I. (2023) Competence-based digital framework for education as a service. In Book: *Advances in Information and Communication. FICC 2023*. Springer Nature. 2023, 775–784.
- 5. Wing, J. M. (2006) Computational thinking. *Communications of the ACM*, 49(3), March 2006.

RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE, 2024, Vol. 19, No. 2, 62 Transport and Telecommunication Institute, Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia

## SUCCESSFUL POSITIONING OF A DRIVER EDUCATION CENTER: WAYS TO CREATE A COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE

#### Marija Leontjeva

Transport and Telecommunication Institute Lauvas 2, Riga, LV-1019, Latvia marialeonteva027.gmail.com

Keywords: Positioning, driver education center, consumer, competitive advantage, adaptation

Company Positioning - is the process of creating a unique identity and brand perception in the minds of the target audience in order to differentiate the company from its competitors. It is a strategic approach that involves identifying key features of a product or service that emphasise its benefits and effectively communicating these features to consumers. (Whitler, 2021) The goal of modern positioning is not only to create brand recognition, but also to create a lasting preference among consumers for the company, which ultimately helps to build loyalty and increase market share. The modern market for educational services, including driver training, is becoming increasingly competitive. It is particularly important for driving schools to be able to stand out among similar organizations and offer value that will attract potential students. Successful positioning of a driving school helps to create and maintain a competitive advantage, which allows the educational institution not only to increase the number of students, but also to strengthen its reputation in the market.

The relevance of the study lies in the understanding that today's consumers of driver education centre services expect a convenient and personalised approach, accessible online solutions and the ability to tailor learning to their schedules.

The purpose of this study is to develop recommendations to establish a sustainable competitive advantage for companies operating in the Latvian market of driver education centre services. The study aims to analyse the key factors influencing the choice of driving schools by students and to identify optimal approaches to manage reputation, improve service quality and implement innovative technologies. In addition, the research will identify the best positioning strategies and practices that will help Latvian driving schools to effectively adapt to changing market conditions and increase their student attractiveness.

Creating a competitive advantage can be achieved by introducing innovative training methods such as virtual simulators, the use of online platforms for theoretical training and personalised courses. It is also important to focus on enhancing the reputation of the driving school through testimonials, recommendations and online presence, which plays a significant role in attracting new customers.

The research is supervised by Mg.oec. Oksana Skorobogatova.

#### References

1. Whitler, K.A., (2021) *Positioning for Advantage: Techniques and Strategies to Grow Brand Value*. Columbia Business School Publishing. 312 p.

## **RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE**

## ISSN 1691-2853 & ISSN 1691-2861 (online)

#### **EDITORIAL BOARD:**

Prof. Igor Kabashkin (Editor-in-Chief), Transport & Telecommunication Institute, Latvia
Prof. Irina Yatskiv (Issue Editor), Transport & Telecommunication Institute, Latvia
Prof. Darius Bazaras, Vilnius Gediminas Technical University, Lithuania
Dr. Enno Lend, College of Engineering, Estonia
Prof. Andrzej Niewczas, Lublin University of Technology, Poland
Prof. Lauri Ojala, Turku School of Economics, Finland
Prof. Eftihia Nathanail, University of Thessaly, Greece
Prof. Dmitry Pavlyuks, Transport & Telecommunication Institute, Latvia
Prof. Irina Kuzmina-Merlino, Transport & Telecommunication Institute, Latvia
Prof. Alexander Grakovski, Transport & Telecommunication Institute, Latvia
Prof. Mihails Savrasovs, Transport & Telecommunication Institute, Latvia

#### Editor:

Irina Alekseeva, Transport & Telecommunication Institute

#### **Supporting Organization:**

Latvian Transport Development and Education Association Latvian Operations Research Society

#### THE JOURNAL IS DESIGNED FOR PUBLISHING PAPERS CONCERNING THE FOLLOWING FIELDS OF RESEARCH:

- mathematical and computer modelling
- mathematical methods in natural and engineering sciences
- computer sciences
- aviation and aerospace technologies
- electronics and telecommunication
- telematics and information technologies
- transport and logistics
- economics and management
- social sciences

Articles and review are presented in the journal in English and Latvian (at the option of authors). This volume is published without publisher editing.

#### EDITORIAL CORRESPONDENCE

Transporta un sakaru institūts (Transport and Telecommunication Institute) Lauvas 2, LV-1019, Riga, Latvia. Phone: (+371)67100586 E-mail: rutkovska.j@tsi.lv, http:// www.tsi.lv

**RESEARCH and TECHNOLOGY – STEP into the FUTURE**, 2024, Vol. 19, No 2 ISSN 1691-2853, ISSN 1691-2861 (online: www.tsi.lv)

The journal of Transport and Telecommunication Institute (Riga, Latvia) The journal is being published since 2006

Copyright © Transport and Telecommunication Institute, 2024